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Misys Newco 28.ar.l.
Managers' report for the year ended 31 May 2015

Managers' Report

The board of managers (the *Board”) prasent therr report and the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 May 2015 {"2015")

Dovalopment of the business

Misys Newco 2 S ar| {the “Company") 1s a imited habiity company doriciled wn Luxembourg The address of
its registered office is 19, Rue de Bitbourg, L-1273, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

The Company, together with ¢s subsidianes ("Misys" of “the Group”) was formed by the combination of two
separate acgusitions by Vista Equity Partners in 2012

The Group's principal activites are the developmant, management and licensing of a varety of software
products and soiutions to customers In the financial services industry The Group operates globally, mcluding
partnering with other companies to sell and distnbute Misys products and solutions.

The business continued its operations as a provider of mission critical software whose products are deeply
embedded in customers’ operations. The finantial services market continues o evolve wath ongoing prassure
on banks to belier manage enterprise wide nisk, to introduce new growth areas and to comply with regulatory
requirements

2015 was a transitional year for the Group, reflected in the decline in performance compared with the strong
results of the previous two financial years 2015 performance was impacted by extended deal cycles in closing
ticence deals as well as some weaknesses i sales exacution, product delays and investments made In prior
years to imprave our sales enablement not dellvering as expected

In the financial year endad 31 May 2015, the Group continued to focus on delivering growth and Improving
operating margmns through investing in product development, sales and marketing, and talent The Group
continues to make organisational changes ta improva sales execution and further advance its ‘go-to-market’
propositions Further argamsational changes were planned and ara to be executed during tie 2016 financial
year The Board continues to believe that the Group will remaln competiive within the markets it operates i,
dus to the quality, breadth and depth of its producis as well as its competitive positoning

On 8 August 2014 the Group acquired 100% of the Issued and outstanding membership interests of Custom
Credit Systeams, LP (‘CCS") for a totat consideration of $26 6m ($24 9m net of cash acquired) CCS s a
leading provider of loan origination and credit workflow software CGS has expertise and strong reputation tn
commercial lending, making their knowlaedge and producls a complement lo the Groups FusionBanking
portfolo The Group have integrated CCS's offering mito FusionBanking Loan IQ to create a fully integrated,
front-to-back office commaercial lending soluton across all asset classes Moare detalls about this acquisition
can be found in note 5 to the consclidated financtal statements

Research and Development Activity

During the year, research and development gross expenditure before capralisation increased to $122 2m
compared t¢ $121 8m in the pnor year largely due to the full year impact of the acquisiton of IND Group
Holding Limited ("IND") and the partial year impact of the acquisiton of CCS offset by foreign exchange
movements. The Group continued to benefit from the consolidation of research and development locations,
along with benefiting from lowar associated costs relative to the US dollar

A successful research and development agenda is a strateglc prionty of the Group The markets i1 which the
Group operates are complex, requinng an effective research and development stralegy to suppert and
maintain the compeltitive advantage the Group enjoys The Group remains committed to the continuous
development of a portfolio of market relevant products This agenda will continue inte the next financial year
Ongoing investment In new technology and functionality has, and wil continue to, enable the Group to
maintain and strengthen its market leading position
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During the year, the Group has nvested in a Group-wide Produc! Strategy function, which is tasked with the
coordination of long term product strategy for 2!l the markets in which it operates, in order to dentfy, and
accolerate the development of, integration opportunities between products for the benafit of its customars
Integration and componentisation of tha Group's solutions, backed up by a leading FusionFabric tachnology
platform, benefits customers of multiple of the Group's products through increased iransparency, reduced
Implementation costs, more effective decisicn-making and more efficient operations

The Group has also enhanced the value proposition of is Corporate Lending solution by Integrating credit
origination and management capabiliies with its back-office and servicing capabillities, as well as integrating its
FusionBanking Essence, Equation, and Midas core banking solutions with the new Digital Channeis mobile
and onlne banking capabilities Most racently, the Group has released the FusionBanking Fees & Billing
modute, allewing customers to buid, test, and roll out sophisticated, cross product and business pncing
strategies, including bundling, discountng, and other activity or volume based pricng strategies in both
corporate and retail banking settings Investments in research and development hava been comphmented by
investments in marketing, In particular with a group-wide rebranding of product lines to create an improved
offering to market

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs")

The Group’s KP! results for the year were as follows

Year ended Year ended

31 May 31 May % Increase/

2015 2014 {decrease)

Revenue ($m) 880 5 945 8 (7%)
Inihal Licence Fees {($m} 2054 260.7 (21%)
Adjusted EBITDAC" ($m) 206 7 32a7 (8%)
Research and development expenditure’ ($m) 1222 1218 0%
Net cash flow generated from operations ($m) 201 7 3100 (6%)
Net debt’ ($m) 1,757 2 1,781 5 (2%)
Headcouni - year end 4,619 4,660 {1%)

'Adjusted Earnings before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and Amortisalion less the amounts capitatised in respact of Internally
developad softwara and other adjustments See page 5 for a reconciiation of operating profil to (his adjusted measura
2 Excluding diseretionary employee related costs

* Borrowings, excluding Praferred Equity Certificatss, less cash ang cash equivalants and restrictsd cash
Commentary on the Group's KPIs 1s provided as part of the financial review below
Financial Review

Results

Revenue decreased by 7% from $945 8m in 2014 to $880 5m in 2015 Revenue decline was largely due to the
impact of foreign exchange rates on repaorted revenues, in particular the strengthening of the US Dollar against
the Euro and Pound Stering dunng the year On a constant currency basis, revenue declned by
approximately 2% largely due to more prolonged deal cycles as a result of extended customers' intemal
diligence processes, some weakness in sales execution and product delays.

A 21% decline in Initial Licence Fees ("ILF") to $205 4m compared with $260 7 In 2014 was largely due to
exscution 1ssues, lengthening of deal cycles and the impact of foralgn sxchange rates The Board considars
ILF to be a KPI becausa It Is a measure of new busness and drives future Maintenance fees and, in many
cases, new Professional Services ("PS") revenue On a constant currency basis ILF reduced by $39 7m or
16%




. aaa

Misys Newco 2S.ar.l.
Managers' report for the year ended 31 May 2015

Matintenance fees decreased marginally from $478 2m to $474 5m 1 2015 due to the impact of foresgn
exchange rates On a constant currency basis maintenance fees increased by 5% benefitting from strong ILF
1n 2014 and annual price increases in 2015

Adjusted EBITDAC of $266 7m, a decline of 8% from $323 7m n 2014, reflects lower (LF, parlly offset by
lower vaniable employee costs Adjusted EBITDAC s the key measure of performance used by management,
and also forms part of the financial covenant under the Group’s loan facilities. A reconciiation between
Adjusted EBITDAC and operating profit as per the consolidated financial statements ts shown In the next
section of this report

Research and development ("R&D") expenditure increased to $122 2m from $121 8m in 2014, largely due to
the acquisition of IND and CCS offset by the Impact of foreign exchange rate movements in the year

Tha Group has conducted annual imparrment reviews on the carrying value of goodwill, based on the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit ("CGU"} to which goodwill has been alfocated The results of
thesa reviews are disclosed in note G to these financial statemsnts On an aggregated basss, the Group has a
significant surplus on the carrying vatues of its CGUs However, on an individual basis an impairment charge
of $60 Orn (2014 $ni) has been recorded in 2015 against the carrying value of goodwill allocaled to the
FusionRisk CGU and is included in operating expenses in the consolidated income statement. Perfermance of
this CGU dunng the year did not meet the expeclalions of management, and together with lower than
antictpated forecast revenues and having considered reasonable senslinvities, the Managers have deemed it
appropnate 1o record this impawrmsnt charge in the consclidated income statement.

The Group reported operating profit of $56 3m compared with $125 2m n 2014 Operating profit includes non-
recurrmg charges of $23.5m (2014 310 5m) conswsting of costs of $1 1m related to the acquisition and
integration of CCS and IND and resiructunng charges of $22 4m The Group anncunced the restruciuring of ils
Eurcpean sales orgamisation in November 2014 and this programme was completed by the end of the financial
year at a total cost of $5 3m In May 2015 the Group commenced new cost reductlon programmes impacting
its PS, Customer Support and Sales and Marketing funcbons and recorded a restructuring charge of $11 Om
mainly related to severance costs In addition operating profit Includes net olher forelgn exchange gains of
$25 7m (2014 loss of $3 6m) which largely consists of realised and unrealised foreign exchange gains on
forward currency contracts used to hedge the Group's forecast cash flow

The Group incurred net finance costs of $337 3m, an mcrease of 2% from $331 2m in the prior year This
increasa was a result of higher interest on Preferred Equity Certificates (“PECs") as a resuit of compounding
interest Finance cosls primanly comprise $144 5m (2014 $144 4m) on bank loans and facihibes and non-
cash $174 4m (2014 %167 6m) on PECs ’

The Group incurred tax charges of $30 2m (2014 $26 7m) largely due to current taxatiocn charges of $67 8m
(2014 $66 7m) partally offset by deferrad tax credits of $37 6m (2014 $40 0m)

Fmnancial position

Mon-current assets of $2,6135m (2014 $2,854 3m) pnmarnly compnse goodwill of $1,6141m (2014
51,686 3m) and other inlangible assets of $918 8m (2014 §$1,0834m) Goodwil of $17 3m and other
intangible assets of $9 8m were recognised during 2015 on the acquisition of CCS A further $28 7m (2014
$34 8Bm) comprises tangible fixed assets, predominantly office furnishings and nformation technology
equipment

Non-cufrent frade and other receivables of $31 6m (2014 $23.3m) comprises tax credits on qualfied research
and development expenditure, and revenue from customers which contractually cannot ba billed within tweive
months of the reporting date.

Current assets of $398 8m (2014 $433 9m) largely comprise bilied and unbslled recelvables of $294 Om (2014
$324 0m) and cash balances of $40 3m (2014 $50 8m)
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Net deferred tax labilities of $138 8m at 31 May 2015 (2014 $170 Om) primanly relate to the tming
differences on other intangible assets acquired by way of business combinations

Other ligbilites compnise ade and other payables of $191 4m (2014 $225 8m) and deferred income of
$253 7m (2014 281 Tm)

Net debt

Net debt 1s defined as borrowings excluding PECs, lass cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash The
Group excludes PECs from net dabt for consistency with the financial covenants under its banking faclities
Net debt decreased by 534 3m In the year to $1,757 2m compared to $1,791 5m in 2014, primanly as a result
of a $49 Om decreasa n the US Dollar value of the €186 3m term loan under the First Lien credit facilily due to
the depreciation of the Euro against the US Dollar. This decrease was partially offset by net cash ouiflows of
$24 9m on acquisition of CCS Note 22 of the consolidated financlal statements provides a reconciiation of the
movemeant in net debt

Cash flow

Net cash flow generated from cperations in the year was $291 7m compared with $310 O in 2014. The
decrease 15 largely due to the lower operating profit generated in 2015, offset by targer non-cash foreign
exchange gains and a smaller decrease in accounts receivable and accrued income

The Group paid $72 5m (2014 $53 1m) of corporation tax dunng the year of which $11.9m (2014 $10.7m)
related to withholding tax kevied on paymenis made to Misys enlities where the tax could not be recovered
through the local corporale tax regme due either lo underlying tax losses or olher restrictions under local tax
faw The Group 15 within the scope of corporation tax in the jurisdictions it 1s based in and settles taxes in
those locations fo the exient that thers are taxable profits 1n the country which are not offset by exisiing tax
losses The mam corporate tax paid was $28 5m (2014 $22.4m} in the US whers remaining tax losses wera
utilised in the year to 31 May 2015

Tha Group used $69 5m of cash for investing actvities (2014. $93 2m) largely comprising $34 2m (2014
$31 9m) expenditure mcurred on internally developed software and the net cash outflow of $24.9m in the
acquisition of CCS )

Net cash of $13 1m was used in financing activihies, being the mandatory repayment of the first lien credit
faciity referred to 1n Note 16
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Reconciliation between operating profit and Adjusted EBITDAC

Below is a reconcillation between operating profit and Adjusted EBITDAC

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figures i $ miiffons - 2015 2014
Operating profit 56.3 1252
Add back
Non-recurring charges 235 108
Goodwill impairment , 60.0 -
Amortsation of other intangible assets 2102 2009
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9.8 g0
Nat other foreign exchange (gain) / loss (25.7) 36
Investor's management fees 14 24
(Gain) ¢ loss on embedded denvatives {7.9) 40
Adjusted EBITDA 3276 3556
Less
Capitalised software devalopmaent costs 309 M9
Adjusted EBITDAC 2967 3237

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s vision of becoming the number one provider of software in the financial services market 1s built an
ensuring customer success, providing outstanding support and services, tnvesling in research and
development, building a high performence cullure and delivering sustainable financial performance Execulve
management actively manages nsks that smpact these strategic imperalives The key nsks and associated
mitigation activiies balow do not comprise all the risks associated with the Group and they are not set out in
any order of priority Additional risks not presently known to management, or currently deemed to be fess
matenal, may also hava an adverse effect on the business

Changing macro-economic conditions and risks related to accurate salas forecasts

The global financial services soflware industry is highly competitive and can be adversely impacted by
changing macro-economic factors ke sovereign indebtedness, economic slowdowns, governmental budgetary
constraints and politicat Instability resulting in change in demand of certain products, inabiity to service ceram
markets and an inctease In deal cycles Whila the impact of these factors on the Group 15 [Imited due to a high
recurming revenue base (over 50% of the Group's revenue 1s recuring n nature} from a geographically
diverslfied customer base {over 2,000 customers mn 130 countnes) wilh no smgle customer centributing more
than 2% of Group revenues, macro-economic and political changes could adversely impact the Group's
results

Technology investments In financial services software are usually signficant in vatug and the Group has to
campete with varnous global, reglonal and local software service providers to win business In addltion, deal
cycles are usually lengthy due to formalised vendor diigence and procurement processes in the financial
services ndustry This combined with changing customer requirements and inconsistent sa'es execution can
create difficultles in foracasting revenues, particularly the quantum and timing of new license sales
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The Group manages these nsks by employing sales teams and sales partners that are compensated based on
performance, geographically based in key markets supported by product specialists where needed The sales
teams are required to develop and maintain healthy sales pipelines {o allow for histoncal dsal win rates and
unpredictabitity in the timing of closing deals While sales pipeline forecasts are subject to regular business
reviews and adjusted for changes in sales dynamics, forecast assumptions of pipetme ‘conversion rates’ and
‘win rates' can be impacted by factors like deal sizes, market conditions, change n customer behaviour,
product maturity and sales performance resulting in increasaed unpredictabiity of new license sales
performance

In addition, a substanbial portion of the Group's sales activity has historically been completed in the laiter part
of the financial year and a shorifall i revenue can have a significant impact on profitability due 1o the relatively
fixed nature of the Group’s cost base in the short to medium term

Market predictions and risks related to product delivery

In a global and rapidly changing market, the Group needs to respond to the changing needs of customers and
regulatars by investing 1n high quality products and solutions that meet their requirements and are delivered on
tme Over time the Group has buiit a software portfolio thal has grown to become the broadest range of
solutions focused on the financtal services industry

The increased demand for Digitai Channels solutions, data analytics, SaaS ("Software as a Service'), nsk
management and reporting tools and the intreduction of regulations such as Dodd-Frank and EMIR provides
the Group opportunities to sell new solutiens lo existing and new customers This requires the Group to track
and pred:ct global and regional market raquirements, trands and changes n regulations and direct the R&D
investment in the nght solutions to ensure maximurm return on investrnent

While ihe Group continues to make significant investment in its products, wath approximately 16% (2014 15%)
of aperational costs in the current year mvested in R&D, i1t 18 possible that some investmants might not deliver
anteipated retums due to changes in market conditions. mherent uncertamties 1n accurately predicting
requirements for a global market ar the faillure to deliver guality producls on time

The Group manages the nisks related to ongoing product investments and product development through
various means Including the use of agile product development methodologies, product investment reviews,
hinng expenenced product managers and business analysts whe understand various market requirements and
the use of customer adwisory buards which bring together key client stakeholders to discuss and validate the
top prionities for Misys preduct roadmaps Over 45% of the Group's staff are dedicated to R&D and the Group
maintains a strong focus on engineering excefience, implemeanting baest practice product development
methodologies, tools and processes and independent product testng and qualty assurance processes
However, the Group could be adversely impacted by unforeseen delays in product development due to
changing requirements, wcreased complexity and coding or manufacturing errors despite testing prior to
release

The Group also invests 1n acquinng complementary technology as evidenced by the acquistion of IND and
CCS Acquistions are inherently risky requinng strong due diigence, analys1s and integration processes to
ensure projecied benefits and synergies are realised The Group uses dedicated and experienced leadership
teams with significant expenence in corpotate development and employs appropriate due diigence processes
when identfying acquisition targets While the Group has a track record and significant expenence of
Integrating acquired businesses, it may fan to ideniify all shortcomings or fabiliies related to acquisitions or fail
to realise all anticipated benefils and synergies

Risks related to project implementations and customer support

To ensure that customers maxirise their return on wvestment, the Group's products usually need to be
supported by timely implementations, integration with existing cusiomer systems and afler sales support
services [n general, system implementations, migrations and integrations can be impacted by unforeseen
challenges in delivering solutions on time and to budget. These nsks can also have an adverse effect on the
timing of revenue recognition
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The Group manages these nsks by the use of services staff and managers with deep domain expertise,
modular, repeatable and predictable project delivery modeis and projact reporting/forecasting processes The
Group uses service delivery centres that are co-located with development teams to continuousiy refine and
improve implementations However, due to the length and complexity of some implementations and the
ongoing modifications to product code, the Group may face unforeseen Issues with services deliveries that can
have an adverse impact on customer satisfaction and profitabllity. The Group usually invest in services
capabilites in advance of projected new license sales and an unforeseen decline i sales performance can
have an adverse impact on services profitability

Customers can choose from standard support or specialised premium support packaeges based on their
requirements. Many support agreaments include service level agreements that the Group needs to comply
with, The Group uses trained customer support staff that has deep domamn expertise deployed in multiple
locations globally to ensure continuous availabiity of appropriate support levels The Group alsc uses a
dedicated customer support portal to monitor support quenes. However, it is possible that the Group may not
comply with support service level agreements which could have an adverse impact on customer satisfaction,
profitabllity and cuatomer retention

Talent management, performance management and employee retention tisks

The Group considers Iis peopls to be its most important asset and relies on the continued service of Key staff
at varnous levels within the organisation to succeed The Group’'s talent management systems are used (o
support ongoing !dentification, development, training and retention of talent and implementation of traming
programs to ensure staff skills remamn relevant and current. Regular benchmarkng of compensation and
benefits across key markets 15 conducted to ensure salaries remain competitive

n addition a strong recruitment and talent acquisition process 1s in place to ensure hgh potential talent 1s
introduced to the Group where needed However, the Group could be adversely impacted by the loss of key
talent and it is possible that such losses, if not managed, can be disruptive to the business

The Group uses performance management systems to ensure individual and team geoals are aligned to
corporate objectives Psarformance management actions may require workforce restructunng that could ba
potentially disruptive to the business and could be accompanied by increased restruciunng costs and
temporary reduction in productivity

Liquidity, debt, financlal control and foreign exchange risks

The Group alms to achleve outstanding financial performance to ensurs sustainable avalability of capral and
liquidty to atiow further investments in people, products and services and appropriate management of the
Group’s debt and hquidity positicn In addition, the Group carries a significant amount of debt with associated
interest, repayment and covenant complance obligations This means the Group needs o focus on strong
financial and cash control, budgeting and relisbility of financial forecasts The Group has a dedicated finance
and treasury team that assists management In operating key financlal controls over budgets, forecasts and
cash flow optmisaton Any unforeseen reductions 1n revenue or increase in costs or habdities, espeacially
around seasona! periods of reduced hquidity may have an adverse impact on the Group's financial
perfermance and working capital position

The Group has operations in around 50 countries and its customers operate in over 130 countnes around the
world While the Group’s financial performance Is measured In US Dollar, 8 significant amount of the Group's
cash flows are denominated in other currencies particularly Euro, Pound Sterling, Inchian Rupes, Philippine
Peso, and Austraban Dollar based on where significant business 1s conducted around the world Any
significant variatons in foreign exchange rates aganst the US Dollar can have an impact on key financial
performance indicators including revenue The Group operates a hedging strategy to protecl a signmificant
poriion of anticipated net cash flows n key foreign currencles using forward currency contracts However, long
term variations in foreign exchange rates of key currencies could adversely impact the Group's profitabiity
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Security and intelfectual property risks

The Group 1s a provider of financial services software and has fo ensure appropnate secunty of its Information
Technology {"IT") infrastructure, products and intsllectual property The Group invests a great deal of tme and
effort i protecting its IT infrastructure and data ncluding any sensitive data held The Group's hosting and
SaaS offerings go through external security reviews and product secunty and vulnerabtlity testing 1s a part of
the software development lifecycle The Group's customers are also increasingly demanding that products
contain appropnate secunty measuraes, even i they are not hosted on the Group’s IT infrastructure High
profile securty breaches at other compamies have increased over tme due to increasingly sophisticated cyber
attacks A highly sophisticated attack on the Group’s minfrastructure or products installed In a customer's
environment could result in the loss of sensitive information or mtellectual property or damage to customers'
business or regulatory obligations and this could have an adverse impact on the Group's competitiveness and
profitabilily

In addition, the Group’s ongaing development efforts result in the creatton of intellectual property (“IP”) such as
copyrights, trademarks and patents, The Group also embeds third party software within its product solutions
to customers While patenting and other forms of IP protection are utlised to protect the Group's IP it is
possible that these processes may nat be sufficient ta prevent IP theft and could result in loss of competitive
advantage In addiion, the Group may face claims by other companies, including patent trolls, clawming
infringement or other misuse of IP rights Responding to such claims, regardless of validity, can be tima
consuming and expensive and could require the Group to cease selling or releasing certain products

Business continuity and disaster recovery risks

The Group has over 4,500 employees in around 50 locations, including a sigmificant presence in Asia, Europe
and the Americas Due to the global nature of the Group's business a significant natural or man-made disaster,
palitical changes, acts of terrorism, restrictions in travel or the movement of people or capital could have an
Impact on the Group’s ability to continue to provide sufficient services lo customers or release products on
time Whis the Group has resilience bwili into its operations with data backups processes, cloud-based
systems and remole working and has successful track record of managing business conhinuity incldents
across multiple locations, the Group's operations could be impacted by major disasters in key sites or
countries

Legal, regulatory and (itigation risks

The Group operates in around 50 locations around the werld and 1s subject 1o various regulations and faws
each country mcluding health and safety rules, data protection regulations, employment laws, tax regulations
and the UK Brbery Act The Group employs dedicated internal regional legal teams supporied by Iegal
advisors and experienced business staff

The Group's global operations, parhcularly n emerging economies, increases the risk of inappropnate
business conduct The Group manages this risk through a prescribed code of conduct, anonymous whistle-
blower sites, anti-bribery training to relevant staff and regular monitoring of customer facing staff and partners
While comphance with all significant laws and regulations is monitored by the regional legal teams there
remains a nsk that the Group may not be comphant with all applicable laws and regulations in avery
Junisdiction

In addibon, from time to tme the Group has been subject to thgation claims from former employees,
customers and bustness partners While the Group has apprepnate process to manage and account for known
hihgation (none of which 18 currently considered {0 be matenal to the Group's results and financial position), any
new and significant kibgation in the future could have an adverse impact on financial performance
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Managers

The Managers of the Company who wera in office during the year and up to the date of signing the
consolidated financlal statements are

Cenald Park (Appointed 19/03/2018)

Cliver Hamou {Appointed 19/03/2015)

Elvin Montes (Appomted 30/04/2015}

Maneel Singh Saroya (Resigned 19/03/2015)

Anne Catherine Grave {Rasignad 19/03/2015)

Catherine Koch (Resigned 30/C4/2018)

Events after the reporting date

Apart from as disclosed In nole 33 to the consolidated financial stalements, no significant avents have
acourred since the reporting date

Going concern

The Managers have rewviowed the Group's forecasts and assumptions relevant in determining the
appropriateness of the gong concern basis and, &t the tme of approving thesa consolidated financial
staternents, have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have access to adequata
financial resources to conhnue in operational existence for the foreseeable future While assessing going
concern assumption the Managers noted that the Group has complied with covenant terms singe their
mncephbion in May 2012 and believe that it will continue to comply with covenant tarms in the foreseeable future,
Thay therefore continue to adopt the going concern basss of accounting in praparing the consohdated financial
statements, as further discussed in noles to the consciidated financial statements

Subsidiary companies

The Group conducts its acthibies through subsidiary companies across the world A ligh of principal trading
subsidiaries 1s shown in note 30 to tha consclidated fmancial statements

Financial Instruments

The finanwial ngk managemant objactives and policies of the Group are set out Im note 26 io tha consclidated
financial statemants

Exemption from audit by Parent Guarantee

The managers of the Company have decided to apply for exemption from audit by Parent Guarantee for some
of its eligible subsidiaries for the year ended 31 May 2015, as permitted by European Umon (“EU”) directive. A
list of subsidianies applying for the audit exermption under parent guarantee is shown in note 32 to the
consolidated financlal statemonts
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Audit report

To the Shareholder of
Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l,

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consohidated financial statements of Misys Newco 2 S4r] and its
subsidiaries, which compnse the conschdated statement of financial position as at 31 May 2015, and
the consolhdated statement of income, the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes

m equity and cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory mformation

Board of Managers’ responsibility for the cansolidated finanamal statements

The Board of Managers 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements m accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adepted by the
European Umon, and for such internal control as the Board of Managers determines 1s necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error

Responsibility of the “Réuvisews dentreprises agréé”

Our responsibility 15 to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We
conducted our audit 1n accordance with International Standards on Auditing as adopted for
Luxembourg by the “Commussion de Surveillance du Secteur Financier” Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonahle assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit mvolves performmg procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures 1o the financial statements The procedures selected depend on the judgment of the
“Réviseur d’entreprises agréé” meluding the assessment of the risks of matenal misstatement of the
finanaal statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those nsk assessments, the “Révisenr
d’entreprises agréé” considers ntermal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropnate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropnateness of accounting pohicies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Managers, as well as cvaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 15 sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for
our audit opmmion

- R - - . PrS——— - - oy - P

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Soc1été coopérative, 2 rue Gerhard Mercator, B P 1443, L-1014 Luxertbourg
T +3524948481, F +352 494848 2900, wtuw pwe lu

Catnnet de réwision agréé Expert-comptable (qutorisation gouvernementale n°10028256}
R C 8 Luxembourg B 65 477 - TVA LU25482518
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Opinion

In our opimion, the consohidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of Misys Newco2 S Arl. and its subsidianes as at 31 May 2015, and of their perfornance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Manager’s report, which 13 the responsibihity of the Board of Managers, 15 consistent with the
consolidated financial statements

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Société coopérative TLuxembourg, 29 July 2015
Represented by

/

Philippe Duren
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Misys Newco 2S.ar.L.
Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 May 2015

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
oil figures In § milliong Note 2015 2014
Revenus 1 880.5 9458
Operaling expenses 2 (B24.2} (820 6)
Operating profit 583 1252
Finance costs 3 (338.1) (3327)
Finance mcoma 3 0.8 18
Net finance costs (337.3) {331 2
Loss before taxation (281.0) {206 0)
Taxation 4 {30 2} (26.7
Loss for the year {311.2) (232.7)
Consolidated statement of comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 May 2015
Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figures in S millons Nole 2015 2014
Loss for the year (3112) {2327
Cther comprehensive ncome:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Actuarial gains recogmsed 20 06 02
- Tax iIncome / {lpss) on items takean directly to equity 10 {5.8) 09
{(52) 11
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
- Exchange difference on the transiabon of foreign operations 14.1 (70)
Other comprehensive incomae / {loss) for the year {net of tax) 89 (59)
Total comprahensive loss for the year {302.3} (238.6)
Attributahle to.
- Owners of ihe parent {302 3) {238 8
The notes on pages 16 to 59 are an infagral part of these consalidated financal statements
12
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Misys Newco 2 S.4 r.l.
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 May 2015

all figures In § milions Note 2015 2014
Non-current assets
Goodwill 6 1,614.1 1,686.3
Other intangible assets 7 8188 1,093 4
Property, plant and equipment 8 287 348
Investments 9 25 28
Deferred tax assats 10 96 123
Denvative financial instruments 1 82 14
Trade and other receivables 12 316 233
2.613.5 2854 3
Current assets
Trade and other recelvables 12 3358 3758
Denvabve financial instruments " 185 35
Cumrent tax asset 31 24
Restncted cash 22 0.9 14
Cash and cash equlvaients 22 40,3 50 8
3948.6 4339
Tota) assets 3,012.1 3,288 2
Equity and liabilities
Share capital 13 - -
Share premium 13 10.4 104
Other reserves 14 (1,031.2 (728 8)
Total equity 1,020.8 {718 5)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables : i5 gg 120
Borrowings 16 1,803 7 1,846 9
Preferred Equity Certificates 17 1,564.8 1,391 8
Darlvative financial instruments 11 1.1 43
Daferred tax hahihbes 10 148 4 1823
Provisions 18 40 52
Deferred iIncome 19 1586 146
Retirement benefit obligations 20 67 73
) 3,653.1 3,464 2
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 156 182.6 2138
Denvative financial instruments " 4.0 62
Current tax liabilities 523 527
Prowvisions 18 28 27
Deferred income 19 236.1 267 1
479.8 5425
Total equity and liabilities 3.012.1 3,288 2

The notes on pages 16 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The financial staternents on pages 12 to 59 were approved by the Board of Managers on 29 0% 7415
d signed on s behalf by £ |, m.,m‘@sl 1] Nanager

by

anager
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 May 2015

Share Share Other Total
all figures [n § mdlions capital premium reserves  aguity
Balance at 1 June 2014 - 104 (728.9) (718.5)
Loss for the year - - (311 2) (311 2)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 8.9 8.9
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (302.3)  (302.3)
Balance at 31 May 2015 - 104 {1,031.2) {1,020.8)
Balance at 1 June 2013 - 102 (490.1) (479 9)
Loss for the year - - (2327) (2327)
Other comprehensive loss for the yeac - - {59) {59)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - {238 6) (238 8)
Other movements - 02 {0.2) ~
Balance at 31 May 2014 - 104 (7289) (718 5)
The notes on pages 16 to 59 are an integral part of thesa consolidated financial statements,
\
|
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Misys Newco 2S.ar.l
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 May 2015

Year Year
ended endad
31 May 31 May
all figureg in $ millions Note 2015 2014
Operating activities
Net cash flow gensrated from oparations 21 291.7 310.0
Interest paid (145 1) (148.1)
Interest received - 01
Net taxation pald 4 {72.5) {53 1)
Net cash flow from operating activities 74.1 1089
Investing activities
Acquisiion of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 5 {24.9) {41 5}
Expenditure on developed software 7 (34.2) 319
Reduction in restricted cash 22 0.5 10
Purchase of third party software 7 (4.4) (8 8)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 8 {6.5) (12 86)
Proceeds from sale of investments 9 - 0.5
Proceeds from sale of property, plant end equipmeant 8 - 01
Net cash flow used in investing activities {69.5) {93.2)
Financing activities
Repayment af borrowings 22 (13.1) {19.5)
Proceeds from borrowings 22 - 247 2
Capitalised fees in respect of bank loans 22 - {20 6)
Redemption of PECs 17 - {168 8)
Net cash flow {used in)ifrem finanging activities (13.1) 83
{Decrease) / Increase In cash and cash equivalents in the year (8.5) 240
Net cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 508 283
Differences on exchange {2.0) 085
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22 403 50 8
The notes on pages 16 1o 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financlal statements
15




Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

The Company Is a ‘Sociéte a Responsabilité Limitée’, domiciled in Luxembourg The Company's country of
incorporation 1s Luxembourg and its regisiered address is 19, Rue de Bitbourg, L -1273 Luxembourg

Nature of entity eperations and principal activities

The Group’s pnincipal achwiies are the development, management and licensing of a varety of scitware
products and solubons to custorners in the financial services industry

Bagis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and IFRS Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC™} infarpretations as adopted by the
EU and in accordance with Luxembourg laws and regulations

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting pollcies

The presentation of the consolidated iIncome statement has been revised to align with how costs are incurred
and managed by the Group Cost of sales, sales and marketing expenses, and general and adminstrative
expenses have been condensed nto operating expenses and supplemented by note 2 which discloses a
breakdown of certain ine items

Guoing concern

The Group's forecasts and prejections, taking account of reasonable potential variations in ftrading
performance, show that the Group is expected to operate within the level of its current financing facilities for
the foreseeable future In making this assessment, the Group has considered bank covenant comphance and
the abibty to operate wathin those covenants with adequate headroom to take into acoount risks in future
expected cash flows,

Aiter making enquines, the Managers of the Company have a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to contnue In operationat exstence for the feraseeable future For this reason, they
continua to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolldated financial staternents

Changes 1n accounting policy and disclosures

New and amendad standards adopted by the Group
The followings IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations and amendments have been adopted by the Group but nona
had any material impact on the Group results or financial positton

+ |IFRS 10, '‘Consohdated financial statements’ and related amendments to IAS 27 Separate Financial
Statements,

*« IFRS 11, “‘Joint arrangements’ and related amendments to IAS 28 Investments 1n Associates and Joint
Ventures,

« |[FRS 12, ‘Disclosures of interests in other entities’,
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 27 — Investment enbibes,
Amendment to IAS 32, ‘Financial instruments Presentation” - Offsetting financtal assets and financial
liabilties,

« Amendment to 1AS 36, ‘Impairment of assels’ — Recoverable amaunt disclosuras for non-financial
assels,

« Amendment to 1AS 38, ‘Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement’ — Novaton of
denvativas and coninuation of hedge accounting; and

+ [FRIC 21, ‘Levies’
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Misys Newco 2S8.ar.l
Notes to the consolldated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

New standards, amendments and interpretations not yef effsclive

Tha fallowing new standards, interpretations, improvements and amendments to existing standards have been
pubhished and are mandatory for the Group®s accounting penods beginning on or after 1 June 2015 or later
periods but the Group has not adopted these early

« IFRS 9 'Financial instruments' {not yet endorsed by the EU),

¢ Amendmenis to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (not yet endorsed by the EU),

« Amendment to IFRS 11,'Joint arrangements’ on acquisition of an interest in a joint operation’ (not yet
endorsed by the EU),

« IFRS 14,"Regulatory defarral accounts® (not yet endorsed by the EU),

s mprovements to IFRSs 2010-2012 (effectve from 1 June 2015),

» Improvements ta IFRSs 2011-2013 (effective from 1 June 2015},

e  Amendment to IAS 18 ,'Properly, plant and equipment' on depreciation and Amendment to IAS
38,'Iniangible assets’, on amortisatllon (not yet endorsed by the EU),

«  Amendment to IAS 19, 'Defined Benefit Plans’ - Employee Contnbuttons (effective fram 1 June 2015),
and

« Amendment to IAS 27, 'Separate financlal statements' (not yet endorsad by the EU)

The Group has undertaken an intial review of the impact of these naw standards, interpretations and
amendments and has concluded that they are unlikely to significantly impact the Group's results or financial
posttion

On 28 May 2014, the Internabonal Accounting Standards Board {(“IASB")-issued IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from
contracts with customers’ The standard Is expected to become effective for the Group’s accounting penod
beginning on 1 June 2018, subject to endorsement by the EU The Group is in the early stages of analysing
the potental Impact of the standard on iis conselidated financial statements. This Impact could be materlal, m
partcular in the areas of allacating revenue to the different performance obligations under one contract and the
timing of revenue recogmtion

A summary of the Group’s accounting policies is given below
Accounting convention

The consolidated financial information has been prepared under the histonical cost convention, except for
cartain items which are measured at far value, as disclosed in the accounhng policies below These
accounting policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unlesa otherwise stated

Basis of consolidation

The Group’s financial statements consolidate the financial statements of Misys Newce 2 Sar| and its
subsidlary undertalungs. On acquisition, the assets, liabiihes and contingent habilities of a subsidary are
measured at their fair value at the date of acquisition

Subsidianes are all entiies (including structured entities} over which the Group has control The Group
controls an entity when the Group 1s exposed to, or has nghts to, vanable retuma from its involvement with the
enlity and has the ability o affect those returns through s power over the entity

Subsidiary undertakings acquired during the year are included in the financial staterments from the date at
which control pesses to the Group Subsidiary undertalungs disposed of are included i the financial
statements up {o the date at which contrel passes from the Group Accordingly, the consolidated income
stetement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the consolldated statement of cash flow
include the results and cash flows for the period of control

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between Group
companies are eiminated
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Mrsys Newco 2S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

Revenue recognition

Ravenue represents the fair value of consideration received or receivable from cllents for sarvices provided by
the Group, stated net of discounts, retums and value added taxes. Revenue Is recognised when a legal nght to
consideration exists and Gan be reliably measured, delivery to a customer has occurred with no significant
vendor obligattens remaining and where the collection of the resulting receivable 1s considered probable

Where these circumstances exist but no invoice to the customer has been raised, under the terms of the
contracts, revenue Is recogmised but the corresponding receivable 1s shown as accrued income in the
consohdated statement of financial positron

The Group generates revenue as follows

Licence fees,

Maintenance fees:
Prafessional Services, and
Subscriptions

a 8 ® 9

Revenue is recognised in accordance with IAS 18 — ‘Revenue’ In determuning the amount of revenue to be
recognised, management exercise judgement, and also adopt estimates In reéaching cerain conclusions
Management considers guidance from software industry common practice in forming its estimates

Licence fees

The Group granis its customers licences {0 use iis software This revenue can relate to (a) ILF, where a fee
relates to the right to use a software product, including significant upgrades pertaining to customers
purchasing new modules or user rights, and {b) Roadmap Accelerator (“RA”), where a fee 1s payable for a
significant vanation of an exlsting product.

Where a ficence 1s not subject to matena) modification or customisation certsin critena must be met before
revenus is recognised

Arrangament existence 1s avidenced,

Sqftware has passed internal qualty checks and 1s deemed generailly available,

Detivery to the custocmer has occurred,

Rusks and rewards of ownership have been transferred from the Group to the customer,

Revenue, and associated costs, can he measured relably and are not subject to further adustment,
and

+ Collection from the customer is deemed probable

In instances where significant vendor obligations exist, revenue recognition 15 deferred until the obligation has
been satisfied No revenue is recognised for multiple delivenes or mulliple element products if an element
remains undelivered and is essental to the functionality of the elements already delivered

ILF on heawvily custormised software, together with assoclated Professional Services revenus, sre treated as a
single defiverable and recognised on a percentage of complelion basis over the penod from commencement of
performance to customer acceptance

Mamtenance fees

Mamntenance of software 1s aften tncluded in licence agreements. The pricing Is usually based on a percentage
of the ILF, which is common practice in the mdustry The Maintenance fee provides customers with rights to
unspecified product upgrades, enhancements and help desk access during a defined support penod This
ravenue IS recognised rateably over the term of the contract

18




Misys Newco Z2S.ar.l.
Notas to the consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

Profassional Services

Revenue is generated from training, consulting and implementation services. These services are reflected in
separate conlracts to licence contracts and can ba elther on a time and matenals or fixed prce basis A
percentage of completion approach 1s adopted to account for fixed-price contracts, which 1s In accordance with
the rules applicable to long-term contract revenue recogmition i [AS 11 — ‘Construction Contracts’ This
involves a companson of costs icurred to date with tolal expected costs of the contract Losses on contracts
are recognised at the point a loss Is foreseen by reference to estimated costs of completion

Subscriptions
In addition to the revenue streams above, the Group earns ather ravenues as follows:

» Hosting revenue is generated by way of an additional subscription fee payable fo the Group to provide
a software hosting service Fees are recegnised on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract,

« Saa5 revenue 1s generated wheraby the customer pays a subscripbon fee to cover the software,
maintenance and hosting service Fees aro recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
contract, and

+ Leasing revenue 1s genaratad by way of granting customers licence access, and providing
mantenance support Fees are recognised on a straight-hna basis aver the term of the contract

Multipie efement arrangements

The Group often enters into fransactions with customers that nclude multiple elements such as software
licence, maintenance and professional services revenues The revenues from these arrangements are
generally accounted for separately The factors considered in determiming whether the revenue should be
accounted for separately include tha nature of the services, the existence of the far value for the separable
elements, the timing of payments and the acceptance enteria on the: realisability of the software licence fee

Revenue from multiple efement arrangements Is allocated to the different elements based on their far value
Fair value for profassional services 1s determined by market pnang for equivalent performance obligatron sold
saparately or the "cost plus reasanable margin® methodology when market data does not exist

When revenue I1s objoctively determined for alt undelvered elements with the exception of one delivered
element, the residual method 1s used to allocate revenue lo the delvered element. Revenue for delivered
elements 15 recognised when the revenue recognition criteria described above are met and revenue is free
from any future uncertainties or adjusiments atiributable to the undelivered elements from which a portion of
the fees have been allocated Revenue for any undelivered elements is daferred and recognised when the
praduct 1s delvered or over the penod in which the service 1s performed

Penslons

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension schemes covering the majonty of its employees
The costs of these pension schemes are charged to the consolidated income statement as Incurred In
addition, the Group has a closed funded dsefined benefit pension scheme m the UK, as well as a number of
other smaller defined benefit arrangements outsida the UK

The remaining active members of the closed UK defined beneft scheme now contnbute o a defined
contributlon section of the scheme and do not accrue further benefits under the defined benefit scheme Fuil
independent acluarial valuations of the defined bensfit scheme are camed out on a regular basis and updated
at each reporting date The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group

Pension scheme assels are measured at farr value Pension scheme liabiliies are measured using a projected
unit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high gquakity corporate bond of equivalent term
and currency to the hability The pension scheme surplus {to the extent that it 1s recoverabis} or deficit 1s
recognised In full on the consolidated statement of financial posiion Any cument or past service cost and
administration expenses are recagnised in the consolldated incormne statement as are the net interest on the
schemes’ liabilities
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

Actuarfal gains and losses arising from expenence adjustments and changes In actuaral assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in the statement of comprehensive income as they arise

Leases

Leases in which subsiantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classifisd
as operating leases Payments made under operating leases such as rentals, are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease, laking nto account the bensfit of any
rent free penod or other incentives

Laasas of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases 15
capitalised in the consolldated statement of financial position at the lower of cost or present value of the
minimum lease payments and i1s depreciated aver its useful Iife The capital elements of future obligations
under ieases are included as labllities in the consolidated statement of financial position

Lease payments are apporticned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as lo
achievs a constant rate of return on the remamning balance of the liability

Taxation

Taxation comprises the amount chargeable on the profits for the year, together with deferred taxation
Deferred taxation Is recogmsed, using the lability method, in respect of all temporary differences arising
belween tax basis of assets and hiatiliies and ther carrying amount in the financial statements

Deferred tax assets are recogrised only to the extent that it 1s probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits from which the underdying temporary differences can be deducted or where there are deferred tax
llabiities agamst which the assets can be recovered

Deferred tax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expacted ta apply In the perods in
which the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferrad tax liabihty 15 seltled based on lax rates and
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the raporting date

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that
it 15 no longer probable that sufiictlent profits will be avalable. Unrecogrised deferred tax assels are
reassassed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it is probabte that fulure prafits will
allow the deferred tax assst to be recovered

Current and deferred tax is recognised m the consclidated income statement except when the tax relates to
items charged or credited directly to the statement of comprehensive income or directly in eguily, In which
case the tax 1s also recognised in the other comprehensive income or diractly in equity

Foreign currencies

Items included In the financial statements of Group entiies are measured using the currency of the pnmary
economic environment In which each entity operates known as the functional currency The consolidated
financial statemants are presanied i US Dollars as this 1s considered to be the currency of the pnmary
economic envirenment of the Group

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functfonal currency of the subsidiary using the exchange
rates prevalling at the dates of the transactions or valuation whera items are re-measured Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assels and labliitles denominated In forelgn currencles are recogrused in the
conschdated income stalement within ‘Operating expenses’

Goodwill and intangible assets recogmsed on the acquisition of entities whose funchonal currency 1s not US
dollar 1s freated as an asset of that entity and translated at the closing rate
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Misys Newco 2S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

The Group hedges its exposure lo cerlain foreign exchange nsks using dernvatives and foreign currency
borrowings Details of the accounting policies in respect of these items are given in the denvative financial
instrumants sectlion.

Transfation of Group comparies

Financial statements of subsidiaries whose functional currency is not the US Dollar are translated mto US
Dollar at the exchange rates prevaiing at the end of the reporting period for items i the statement of financial
positon, and at average exchange rates for consolidated mcome statement items

All effacts of exchange rate adjustments are recognised in the consolidated income statement, with the
axception of exchange rate adjustments of invesiments m subsidianes ansing from

« the translation of foreign subsidianes' net assets at the beginning of the year to the exchange rates al
the end of the reporting period,

« the translation of foreign subsidianes’ statement of comprehensive incomea from average exchange
rates to the exchange rates at the end of the reporting pencd, and

» the translation of non-current infra-Group balances thai are considered to be an addition to net
investments In subsidiaries

Thase specific exchange rate adjusiments are recognised in other comprshensive income

If the subsidiary undertaking 15 subsequently sold or closed, cumulative gains or losses recogmsed in other
comprehensive mcome are recycled to the consolidated Income statement as part of the profit or loss on
disposal If a non-current intra Group balance s settled or aitered to a point it 1s no longer considered part of
the net investments in a subsidiary undertaking any related foreign exchange gains or losses which had
previously been recorded to the statement of other comprehensive income are recycled to the conschidated
income statement as part of operating expenses

Business combinations

The Group uses the acquisiion method of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisittan of a subsidiary Is the farr value of the assels transferred, the liabilities assumed
and the equity interests issued by the Group The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or habity resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisihion-related costs are expensed as
incurred  Identifiable assets acquired and liebilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured irvtially at their fair values at the acquisitton date

On acquisition, specific intangible assets are dentified and recognised separately from goodwill and then
amortised over therr estmated useful lives These include such items as brand names, customer relationships
and complete technology, to which value 1s first attnbuted at the time of acquisition The capitaiisation of these
assets and related amortisation charges are based cn judgements about the velue and ecanomic tife of such
items These economic lives for intangible assets are estimaled at between three and fifteen years

The excess of purchase consideration and the far value of separable assets and liabiities acquired 1s
aliocated to goodwill and recognised as an intangible asset. Goodwll is not amortised but is reviewed for
impairment annually and whenaver thera 1s a polential ndicator of impairment Any impairment is recognised
immediately in the consolidated incoma statement and i1s not subsequently reversed

On the disposal of a previcusly acquired subsidiary, the attnbutable amount of goodwitl Is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal

Transaction costs
Acquisition-related costs are expensead as incurred cnce any related contingencies have been resolved

21




Misys Newco 2S8.Ar.l
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

Other intangible assets and research and development expenditure

Research expenditure Is expensed in the peniod 1n which it 15 Incurred  Expenditure on developed software s
capitaised when the Group 15 able to demonstrate all of the following. the technical feasibility of the resulting
asset, the abilily and intention to complete the development and use or sell it, how the asset will generate
probable fulure economic benefits, and, the abihty to measure reliably the expenditure attnbutable to the asset
dunng [ts development Capitalised expenditure on Internally developed software 1s amortizsed over its useful
economic e in ine with expected future economic benefits, onca the related software product Is available for
use

Development costs which do not meet these ¢nteria are recogrised in the consolidated incoms statement as
incurred and are not subsequently capitalised

Development costs that ara dirgctiy attnbutable to the design and testing of Identifiable and unique third party
software products controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when the following criterla are
met

It 15 technically feasible to complete the software product sa that it will be available for use,
Management intends to complate the software product and use or sell i,

There is an ability to use or sell the software product,

It can be demenstrated how the software product will generate probable future econamic benefits,
Adequate technical, financial and other resources to completa the development and to use or sall tha
software product are availlable, and

s The expenditure attnbutable to the software product duning its development can be reliably measured

Directly atnbutable costs that are capitalised as parl of the software product Include tha software development
employeea costs and an appropnate portion of relevant overheads Other development expenditures that do not
meet thesa critena are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as an
axpensse are nol recognised as an asset in a subsequent period

Computar software development cosis recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated usaful ves,
which 1s between three and seven years Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are
recognised as an expense as incurred

Intangible assets purchased separately, such as software licenses that do not form an integral part of related
hardware, are capltaised at cost and amortised over their useful economic lives

Intangible assets acquired through a business combination are wutially measured at fair value and amortised
on a systematic basis thal reflacts tha pattern of banefts expacted aver their useful economic lives If the
paltern of future benefits cannot be determined reliably, the intangibie assets are amortised on a straight fine
basis The amortisalion penod I1s reviewed annually

Estimated useful ives by major class of assets are as follows

Complete technology 3-7years

Customer ralatonships 4 - 15 years

Other acquired intangibles 2-15 years

Internally developed software 3 -5 years

Third party softwara 3-7 years . .

Property, plant and equipmant

Property, plant and equipmant are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Cost includes the osiginal
purchase pnce of the asset and the cost attributable to bringing the asset 1o its working condition far its
intended use Depreciation i1s calculated on a stratght ine basis so as to wnte off the cost, lass estmated
residual value of each asset, over its expected useful life
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

The residual values and useful economic lives of property, plant and eguipment are reviewed annually The
useful ives by major class of asset applied from the date of purchase are

Buildings 20 - 30 years
Leasehold improvements 6 - 15 years or the penod of the lease If shorter
Computer and other equipment 4 - 15 years

Impairment of assets

Assels thal are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impairmeni whenever avents or
changes in circumstancas indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable and annualiy in the fourth
quarter

Goodwill and developed software not yet brought into use are reviewed for impairment annually For the
purpese of imparment testing, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which goodwill 1s allocated and
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synargies of the
combinatton Cash-generating units to which goocdwill has been allocated are {ested for iImpairment annually,
or mere frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be Impatred If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit Is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss 1s allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the
basls of the cammying amount of each asset in the unit. Prior impairments of assets {other than goodwill) are
reviewed for pessible reversal annually

An imparment loss 1s recogrused for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset*s fair value less costs {o sell and its value in use

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset 1s included in the consolidated incoma statement in the
year the asset 1s derecognised.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classiied in the following categones ‘at fair value through profit or loss’, ‘lcans and
receivables’, and *available for sale’

‘Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss’ are financial assets held for trading or where designated
as such on onginal recogmition Denvatives ars also classified as held for frading unless they are designated
as effective hedges Gamns and losses ansing from changes in fair vaiue of ‘financlal assets at fair value
through profit or loss’ are included in the consolidated income statement in the period in which they arise
Financial assets at fawr value through profit or loss are subsequently held at fair value

‘Loans and recervables’ are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that ara not
quoted in an active market and are carried at amortised cost

‘Avaiiable for sale’ financial assets are measured at farr value Unrealised gans and losses are recognised In
equity except for impairment losses, interest and dvidends arising from those assets which are recognised in
the consclidated income statament.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents Include cash held at bank and in hand together with short-term highly iiquid

investments with an original maturity of less than three months that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and subject to an msignificant change in value
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Restricted cash

Resincted Gash i1s disclosed saparately on the face of the consolidatad statement of financial pesihon and
denoted as restricted when it 1s not under the exclusive control of the Group

Trade and other receivables

Trade recevables are recognised inltially at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Whers thers 15 objective ewidence that there is an impairment loss, the amount of (Dss 1S measured as the
difference between the carrying amount and the prasent value of the estimated futura cash flows discounted at
the effective interest rate The amount of loss Is recogmised in the consolidaled ncomea statement within
operating expense The carrying amount of a receivable s reduced by appropriate allowances for estmated
Irrecoverable amounts through the use of an allowance account for trade receivables Amounts charged to the
altowance account are written off when there 1 no expectation of further recovery Subsequent recovenes of
amounts previousiy written off are credited against operating expenses in the consolidated income statement

Investments

Equity investments are classifled as ‘fair value through profit or loss' Gains and lossas ansing from changes in
fair value are included in the consolidated income statement in the pericd in which they anse.

Financial liabilifies and equity instruments

Financial habditles and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into An equuity instrument i1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group after deducting all of its liabtlities.

Trade payables

Trade payablas are recognised imtially at farr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effectiva interest methed

Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obhgation as a result of past
events and it Is probable that an cutflow of resources will ba required to settle the obligation and this amount 18
capable of being relably estimated [f such an obligation 1s not capable of being reliably estimated, no
provision 1s recognised and the item 1s disclosed as a contingent hability where matenal

Onerous property contracts

Prowision for onerous lease commitments on property contracts i1s made when a property 13 no longer used by
the Group and is based on an estimata of the net unavoidable lsase and other payments In respect of these
properties including dilapidation costs These comprise rental and other property costs payable, plus any
termination costs, less any ncome expected to be denved from the properies being sublet The provisians are
discaunted at an appropriato rate o take into account the effect of the hme value of money

Borrowings

Borrowings conslist of tarm loans, overdrafts and other short term faciities, and are Inttially recogmised at fair
value less directly attnbutable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective Interast rale method The difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income statement, within finance costs, over the period of
the borrowmings Barrowings are classified as current habilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer setlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date
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Preferred Equity Certificates

The Group has additional financing in the form of PECs tssued to the immediate parent company Misys Newco
8.4 r| The PECs are repayable in cash within a period of up to 49 years from incephon and have a contractual
requiremant to accrue and pay inferest and accordingly have been classified as a kability

Denvative financial instruments .

Derivative financial instruments are init@alfy recognised at fair value on tha date a denvative is enterad into and
are subsequently remeasured at fairr valus The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on
whelher the denvative I1s designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, the nature of the ilem being hedged
Changes in the far value of derivative financial instruments, where they are not designated as hedging
instruments, are recognised m the consolidated income statement because the requirements that permit
hedge accounting in certain circumstances were not satisfied,

Certain forecast non-US Dollar cash flows of the Group in key currancies are hedged with forward currency
contracts. Hedge accounting 13 not applied and the gains and losses are recorded in the consolidated income
statemant 1n operating expenses

Certain financlal assets and liabllities, which are denominated mn currencies other than those of the functional
currenciee ¢f the entities concerned, may also be hedged using forward currency contracts Gains and losses
on these centracts are recorded in oparating expenses together with offsetting gains and losses on the
underlying items

Embedded derivatives

Certain long-term software licensing contracts are priced in currencles which are not the funclional currencies
of the entities entering into the contracts or are not common contracting currencies in the lecation in which the
transaction takes place Such contracts are considered to contain an embedded forelgn currency dernvative
which must be extracted from the host contract and measured separately at each reporting date Gains or
losses on thesea denvatives are charged or credited o the consolidated income stalement The contracts are
generally of up to 10 years’ duraticn and this 1s therefore the period aver which the asseis and habiities
recognised [n the consolidated statement of financiai position are expsected to crystalise

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly atinbutable to the 1ssue of new ordinary
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from proceeds

Government grants

Government grants are not recogmised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditicns attaching 1o them and the grants will be received The effect of grants, which include incentives
structured as R&D tax credits, 1s to reduce the value of the asset of expense

Govemment grants whose pnmary condition 1s that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are disclosed as a hability in the consolidated statement of financial posihon and
transferred to profit or loss an a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assels

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
in making estmales and assumptlions, actual outcomes could differ from those assumptions and estimates
The cntlcal judgements that have been made In arnving at tha amounts recognised in the Group’s financial

siatements and the key sources of estmaticn uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a matenal
adjustment to the camrying values of assets and iabilities within the next financial year 1s discussec below
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Revenue racognifion

The recogniticn of ILF revenue 1s dependent upon falr value allocaton, separabiily of components,
collectability and there baing no significant vendor obligations outstanding Management exercises judgement
in assessing whether such obligations are significant and, If necessary, the value of the revenue 10 be
deferred. Such revenue is recognised on signing only for products which are judged to be in a state fit for
general availability and ready to be shipped, to contain &ll planned components and to have completed quality
teshing.

The revenue and profit of fixed price Professional Services contracts 1s recognised on a percentage of
completion basis when the outcome of a confract can be estimated relably Management exercises
judgement n identifying onerous service contracts and determining whether a contract's oufcome ¢an be
estimated rellably Management also makes estimates in the calculation of future contract costs, fair values of
contracts, the value of discounts gwen, the value of upgrade clauses tnh contracts which are used in
determining the value of amounts recoverable on contracts and timing of revenue recogmtion Estimates are
continually revised based on changes in the facts relating to each confract

Impawrment of goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets are reviewed annually for impairment An impairment review requiras an
estimate to be made of the ‘value in use’ or the “fair value less costs to sell’ as appropnate The value In use
calculation includes estimates about the future financial performance of the cash generating units, including
management's estimates of long-term operating margins and long-term growth rates in the current peried,
managemant has assassed the recaverabla amount of tha cash generating units based on ther valuss in use
and no impairments have ansen A reascnably possible chiange in the assumptions used however could result
in imparment and congsequently a sensitivity analysis has been disclosed in note 6

Capitalisation of development cosis
Expenditure on developed sofiware 1s capitalised when the Group is able to demonstrate all of the following
the technical feasibility of the rasuiting asset, the ability and intention to compteta the development and use or
sall it, how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits, and the abiity to measure reliably the
expenditure altributable to the asset duning Its development Management estimaltes the future sales and long-
term operating marging of the asset

Onerous property contracts

Property provisions require an estimate to he made of the net present value of the future coslts of vacant and
sublet properies The calculation includes estmates of fulure cost involved, Including management's
estimates of the long term letting potential of the propertias

Taxation

Tax authorities continue to increase their requirements on the maintenance of a good tax control framework on
which to base the multiple tax filngs the Group Is required to make to numerous authontes glebally
Management use this documented process to review key judgement nisk areas to determine the financal
statement {mpact from these filings Tax authonities are also examining more closely how low taxable profits
are matched to business activities conducted in different junsdictions

These estimates and judgemenis are regularly reassessed and changes in the expected financial statement
impact accounted for in the period in which the reassessment i1s made

Prowvision far the impawrment of frade receivables and accrued income

Provision for the imparment of trade receivables and accruad income requires an estimate for the
recoverabilly of the outstanding receivables and accrued income keeping in view varlous implementation
challanges, disputes with customer, customers expenencing financial difficulty and recervables which have
bacame significantly aged Management's estimates include reasonable resolution of thesa matters along with
customer financial standing to ensure that the trade receivable will be collected
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Pensions .
The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an

actuanal basia using a2 number of assumplions The assumpitons used in determining the net cost (income) for
pension nclude the discount rate Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of
pensicn ohhigations

Research and development lax credils
Tha Group has filed claims for research and development tax credits and management’s esfimate of the

recoverable amount relies upon procedures In place to support the assessment and doctimented processes
and controls to suppert these claims,
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1 Revenue

Revenue by activity 1s as follows

Year Yaar
ended ended
31 May 31 May
alt igurés In § millons 2015 2014
mtial licence fees 205.4 2607
Maintenance fees . A474.5 478 2
Professional Services 164.4 1697
Subscrplon 36.2 a2
880.5 945 8
The Group i1s exempt from IFRS 8 - ‘Operating Segments’ and accordingly s not required to present
segmental information
2 Operating expenses
Operating expenseas are comprised of the following
Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
- allfigires in § millions Nole 2015 2014
. *Non-recurring ¢harges PR 23.5 105
Goodwill impairment [ 60.0 -
Amortisation of other nfangible assets 7 2102 200 9
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8 9.8 90
Capitalised software development costs 7 (34 2) {319)
Capitaiised software development costs wntten off 7 33 -
Investor's management fees 25 14 24
Realised trading foreign exchange loss / {gain) {12) 14
Net other foreign exchange (gesn) / loss 16 (42)
(Gain) / loss on forward currency contracts 11 (37 3) 78
{Gain) / loss on embedded denvatives 11 (7.9) 40
Employes costs (see below) 363 2 3974
Other operating expenses (see holow) 221.8 2233
824 2 820.6

Non-recurring charges conststs of acquistion and integration costs of $1 1m (2014 $1,1m) and restructuring

relatad charges of $22 dm {2014 $9 4m)
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Employee costs compnsa of

Year Year

ended anded

31 May 31 May

ali figures in $ millions 215 2014

Wages, salanes and benefits including redundancy costs 3077 3400

Social secunty costs 388 407
Pension costs

Defined contribution plans 158 153

Defined bensfit plans D9 14

363 2 397 4

Remuneration of Managers and key management personnsl 13 disclosed in note 25. The average monthly

number of people employed by the Group during the year was 4,635 (2014 4,412)

Other operating expenses include '

{ Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

all figrres in § milions 2015 2014
Sales commissions and sales retated bonus 29.1 355
Third party royalty fees 17.2 167
Agency fees 41 44
Subcontractar costs 375 292
Direct sales costs 1.7 a2
Marketing expenses 9.9 73
Travel expenses 318 337
Peaple related expenses 63 84
Qccupancy costs 327 326
information systems cosls 309 324
Legal and professicnal costs 114 107
Other costs 9.2 132
221.8 2233

During the year, the Group obtained ths following services from the Company's auditors and its associates

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

all figures In § milions 2015 2014

Fees payable to Company's auditors and its associates for the audit of the 07 07

consolidated financial statements

Fees payable to Company’s auditors and its assoclates for the audit of the 0.8 11
Company's subsidigries )

14 18

Tax services 07 08

Other non-audit services - 02

22 28
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3. Net finance costs

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figures in $ milicns Note 2015 2014
Interest expense
- Borrowings 16 (144 5) {144 4)
- PECs 17 (174.4) {167 6}
- Accration of discount on provisions 18 {0.2) (0 9)
Amortisation of financing facility casts 18 {16 8} {18.2)
Net financing charge relabing to pensions {02) {0 6)
Fair value losses on investments 9 (0.3) o1
Other finance costs {1.7) (0.9)
Finance costs (338 1) {332 7)
Interest received on cash and cash equivalents - 01
Accretion of discount on trade receivables 0.8 14
Finance Income 08 15
Net finance costs (3372.3) {331 2)
4 Taxation
Taxaton on ordinary activitles
Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
ali figures in $ millions Note 2015 2014
Current taxation
Corporation tax on losses for the year (50 2) (53 0)
Adjustments in respect of prior year (3.5) (33)
Irrecoverable withholding taxes {(12.1) {10 4)
Current taxation (67 8) (66 7)
Deferred taxation 10 37.6 40 0
Tax expense {30.2) (26.7)
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The difference betwesn actual tax income computed using a weighted average rate and the tax computed on
the Group’s loss can be explainad as follows.

Year Year
aendad ended
. 31 May 31 May
all figures In $ millons 2015 2014
Loss before taxation {281.0) (206.0)
Tax credit on loss on ordinary actvities at the weighted average rate of 19 4%
(2014 18 8%) 54.8 /7
Tax effacts of.
Permanent differences {14.5) 186
interest expensa not deductible for tax purposes (24.7) (25 2)
Remeasurement of deferred tax due changes in lax rates 02 13
Temporary differences for which no deferred tax asset recognised (32 5) {37 4)
Prior year adjustments for current tax {55 (33)
Priar year adjustments for deferred tax 4.3 (20)
Irrecoverable withholding tax {12.1) {10.4)
Tax charge (30.2) {28.7)

The weighted average tax rate is calculated using the undertying statutory tax rates in the location where the
profits anse Deferred tax movements are descnbed in note 10

A fax charge of $5 8m (2014 credit of $0 9m) refated to currency translalion differences has been recognised
IN reserves

5 Business combinations

Acquistion of CCS

On 8 August 2014 the Group acquired 100% of the 1ssued and autstanding membership interests of CCS for a
total consideration of $26 6m ($24 9m, net of cash acquired) CCS i1s a software busmess based in the US
which provides a loan ongination product for the banking sector

The value of the assets and habiiities acquired in the purchase of CCS and the associated fair value
adjustments related to those assets are as follows

. Provistonal Provisional
fair value fair value at
all figures in § millions Book value adjusiments 8 August 2014
Intangible assets - 98 98
Property, plant and equipment 02 - 02
Cash and cash squivalents 17 - 17
Trade and other raceivables 18 - 18
Accrued income - 01 01
Trade and other payables (0.2) - (02)
Accruals {0 5) - (05)
Deferred mcome {12) (24) (3 6)
Not assets acquired . 1.8 75 9.3
Goodwill 173
Cash censidaration 268
n
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An analysis of anterpnse value of CCS is as shown below

8 August
all figures tn § milliona 2014
Consideration paid in cash 26.6
Cash acquired {17}
Enterprise value ¢f CCS 249

The assets and liabllitles and the amounts allocated to them are provisional and are subject to adjustment
durng the year ending 31 May 2016 if new informahon is chtained about the facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of CCS is pnncipally attnbutable to future profits from new customers in new
markets and regions, through cross selling opportunities and the assembled workforce. Costs associated with
the acquisibion of CCS of $1 Om are included in operating expenses n the consolidated income statemant

Revenue and profit of CCS were not matenial to the Group's financial performance in 2015 The revenue and
profit that CCS would have contnbuted had it been consolidated from 1 June 2014 would not have been
material to the Group

Acquisitfon of IND
On 8 February 2014, the Group acquired 100% of the ssued share capital of IND for a total consideration of
€32 9m (344 5m). IND 1s a front end system developer focused on the banking sector

Fair value Fair value at
all figures n § millions Book value adjusiments 8 February 2014
Intangible assels - . 173 173
Property, ptant and equipment 10~ - ) - 7 10
Deferred tax assets (llabdities) 05 {3.3) (28)
Cash and cash equivalents 30 - 30
Trade and other recevables 32 - 32
Accrued income 11 0z 13
Borrowings {28) - (28)
Accruals (18) - (15)
Deferred income (18) (13) (32)
Other liabllities {3 0) - {30)
Net assets acquired (0.4) 129 125
Goodwill 32.0
Cash consideration 44.5
An analysis of enterprnise value of IND 15 as shown below.
8 Fehruary
all fiqures in'S milliona 2014
Consideration pawd in cash 445
Cash acquired (30)
Borrowings discharged as part of acquisition 28
Enterprise value of IND 44.3

External debt of IND was setiled by the Group as part of the acquisition No subsequent falr valus adjusiments
have been mads since acqulsiion Goodwill ansing on tha acquisition of IND is principaily attributable to future
profits frem new customers in new markets and regions, through cress selling opportunitios and future profits
from new baniung technologies strengthened by adding mobile banking lechnclogies and the assembled
workforce Revenue and profit of IND were not matenal to the Group’s financial performance in 2014 The
revenua and profit that IND would have contnbuted to the 2014 year had it been consclidated from 1 June
2013 were not malenal.

32

ey




Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

6. Goodwill

31 May 31 May
Al figures in § miflons 2015 2014
Cost and net book value at 1 June 1,686.3 1,648 0
Differences on exchange (29.5) 63
Acquisition of IND {nota 5) - 3240
Acquisihion of CCS (nota 5) 173 -
Impatment charge (60.0 -
Costand net book value at 31 May 1,614 1,686.3

Goaodwill impairment testing

Goodwiil acquired through business combinations has been allocated for the purposes of mpairment testing to
cash-generating units ("CGUs"} The Group conducts annual mpairment testng on the carrying value of
goodwill, which is based on tha racaverable amount of the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined by way of value in use (*ViU") calculations The
determination of whether or not goodwill has been imparred requires an estimate to be made of the VIU of the
CGU to which geodwill has been allocated

The VIU calculations use pre-tax cash flows of each CGU, based on the approved budget for the year ending
31 May 2016 and medium term plans for the following three years which are consistent with the recent
financial performance of the relevant CGU A growth rate of 3 8% (2014 4 5%) was used based on current
and expected future performance for year five. Thereafter, a long term growth rate of 2% (2014- 2%) has been
used

Change in CGUs

Management identfied CGUs as part of an initial impairment review conducted as at 31 May 2013 There has
been a series of events which concludad in 2015 which have changed the way the Group operates This
includes

Rebranding of product base;

Evolution of product base - includes new products and suites of products,
Full ntegration of the Turaz and Sophis businesses, and

Acquisition and intagration of IND and CCS

As a resull of the above, a re-assessment of CGUs for impairment review purposes was considered necessary
for the year endad 31 May 2015 to better refiect the construct of the business, the results of which are below

All figures in § milllons Reallocation

31 May 2014

CGUs Opening IND Turaz Scphis Clgsing 1 June 2014 CGUs

Capital Markets 350.7 - 245.5 840 6802 MisysFusionCapital

Sophis 2014 - - (84 0) 117 4 MisysFusioninvest

Core Banking 3918 320 - - 4238 MisysFusionBankingCore

Corporate

Lending 1664 - - - 1554 MisysFustonBankinglending

Enterprise Risk Mo - 190 - 900 MisysFustonRisk

Transaction

Banking 189 0 - 305 - 2195 MisysFusionBankingTransaclions
1,369 3 320 2850 - 1,686 3

Turaz 2950 - (285 0) - -

IND 320 (32 0) - - -

Yotal goodwiil 1,686 3 - - - 1,686 3
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Upan initial recognition goodwiil was allocated 1o sach CGUL based on the axpected performance of the CGU.
The reallocation of goodwill as set out above refiects the changes in how the Group operates and manages its

product base

The table below shows the allocation of the camying value of goodwill as at the reporting period by CGU

2015

alt Nepures in § millions

FusionCapital 655 4
Fusioninvest 1174
FusionBankingCora 4191
FusionRisk 300
FusionBankungTransaction 2195
FusionBanking Lending 172.7
Total 1,614.1

2014;

all figures in $ mullions

Capital Markels (excluding Sophis) 3507
Sophis 201 4
Core Banking 3918
Corporate Lending 155 4
Enterprisa Risk 710
Transaction Banking 1890
Turaz 2950
IND 320
Total 1,686 3

Key assumptions

The key assumptions in the VIU calculations are discount rate applied, operating margin end the long-term

growth rate of net operating cash flows

Discount rafe

Discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific nisks relating to the relevant CGU or group of CGUs. The
discount rates applied to CGUs wers as follows

2015

Pre-tax
CGU discount rate
MisysFusionCapital 15 8%
MisysFusioninvest 139%
MisysFusionBankingCore 15 0%
MisysFusionBankinglending 15 0%
Misys FusionRisk 18 7%
MisysFusionBankingTransactions 14 9%
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2014,

Pre-tax
cGu discount rate
Capital Markets ) 14 9%
Sophis 13 2%
Turaz 130%
Core Banking 14.0%
Corporate Lending 14 1%
Enterprise Risk 14 1%
Transaction Banking 156%
Operalting margin

Management determined budgeted operating margin based on prior performance and expectation of market
development The weighted average growth rates used are consistent wath the forecasts included in industry
reporls

L.ong-term growth rate

Long-term growth rates of net operaling cash flows are assumed equal to the iong-term growth rate in the
gross domestic product of the country in which the CGU’s operaticns are undertaken, and were 2% (2014
2%) for penods beyond the first five years

Summary of results
The impairment reviews indicated significant headrocom on an aggregated basis in comparnson to the total
carrying value of the combined CGUs

For the MisysFusionRisk CGU the recoverable amount was lass than its carrying value and an impaument
charge of $60 Om (2014 $nil) has been recognised against the carrying value of its goodwill The main dniver
for the imparment was the revenua and operating margin detertoration in 2015 expenencad in this product
group, and tha lower revenue outlook for the foracast period

No impairment charges were dantified for any of the other CGUs
Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

As part of the VIU testing the Managers consider the impact that a range of scenarnos could have on the key
assumptions within the VIU calculation

Driscount rate

The Group bases iis estimate for the long-term pre-lax discount rate on its weighted average cost of capital
{“WACC") using long-term market data and industry data to derive the apprepriate inpuls to the calculation
The Managers consider that a 1 5% change in the absolute discount rate is the maximum changs that should
be conswdered as reasonably possible as this represents a 11% to 12% increase in the WACC

Oparating margin

The Managers consider that a reduction of 5% in the absclute value of long-term cperating margins across all
CGUs would be the limit of what could be considered to be reasonably possible on the basis that the Group’s
cost base 1s flaxible and could quickly respond to market changes The Group is spread across a range of
geographies and a large recurring maintenance revenue stream which help to Insulate it from more significant
changes

Long-term growth rate

The Group uses a long-term growth rate that is the same as the long-term growth rate of gross domestic
product (GDP) of the terntorles in which the CGU is based Given these are long-term rates, the Directors
consider a change of 1% in the absolute value of the long-term growth rate to be the ilmit of what is reasonably
possible
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Summary of sensttivity analysis

Sensiivity analyses have been performed around the base case assumpiions with the condusion that no
reasonably possible changes In key assumptions would cause the recoverable amount to be less than the
carrying amount in any CGU, ather than MisysFusioninvest.

In MisysFusioninvest, the recovarable amount based on value In use exceeded tha camying value of the net

assets by $48 4m A dechne in annual shont term revenue growth of 22 4%, a fall in long term growth rate by
3 9% or a nse In pre-tax discount rate by 3 2% would remove the remaning headroom.

7. Other intangible assets

Other Total
Complete  Cuslomer acquired acquired Developed Third party
2l figuras In § milione technology relationships intarigibles intanglbles  software  software  Total
Cost
At 1 June 2014 7005 547 7 1576 1,4051 701 184 1,4943
Differences on exchange (20} (2 1) {02) {43) (6.1) (2 3) (12.7)
On acquisition of CCS - _
{note 5) 64 2.4 1.0 98 98
Additons - - - - M2 44 386
Whritten off - - - - - (33) - {3.3)
At 31 May 2015 704.9 548.0 158.4 1,411.3 34.9 203 15287
Accumulated amortisation
At1 June 2014 (266 6) 97N (210) (385.3) (8 0) (T6) (400.9)
Differences on exchange 05 0.1 - 06 13 13 3.2
Amortisation charges
(note 2) {134 4) (486 4) (1.1) (1919 15 1} {32) (210.2)
At 31 May 2015 {400.5) {144.0) {32.1) {578.6 21.8) {8.5) (607.9)
Net baok value
At 31 May 2015 304 4 404 0 126.3 834.7 731 11.0 918.8
Other Total
Complete  Customer acqured acquired Developed Third party

all figuros (n § milions lechnology relationships [ntangibles intangibles  software  software  Tolal
Cost
Al 1 June 2013 6803 541.1 156 6 1,388t 373 90 14343
Differences on exchange 01 04 - 05 09 086 20
On acquisition of IND 10 4 62 10 173 - - 173
{note 5)
Additions - - - - 319 88 407
At 31 May 2014 700 5 547 7 1576 1,405 70.1 184 14943
Accumulated amortisation i
At 1 June 2013 {134 3) (49 2) (10 4) (193 9) 22) (37) (1998
Ditferences on exchanga o1 - - 01 o1 {(02) (02)
m&"g"““‘ charges (132 4) (485  (106) (1915) (57) (37) (20089)
At 31 May 2014 (266 6) (97.7) (210) (385 3} {8.0) (76) (4009)
Net book value
At 31 May 2014 4339 450.0 1366 1,020¢ 821 108 1,0934
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Comglete technology, customer relationships and other acguired wntangibles had a wewghted average
remaining Iife of 32 months (2014 43 months), 112 months (2014. 124 months) and 143 months (2014 156
months) raspactively at 31 May 2015

There was no impairment of other intangible assets in 2015 (2014 $n)

8. Praperty, plant and equipment

Buliding and Computer
leaseghold  and other
alf fgures in § milions improvements _equipment Total
Cost
At 1 June 2014 237 299 5386
Differences on exchange 7 27 {4 4)
On acquisition of CCS (note 5) - D2 02
Additions 08 57 6.5
Dispogals {1.6) (1.7} {3.3)
At 31 May 2015 21.2 314 5286
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 June 2014 (64) (12 4) {18 8)
Differences on exchange 05 09 14
Depreciation charges {note 2) (29} {6 9) (9.8)
Disposals 16 17 33
At 31 May 2015 {7.2) (16 7} {23.9}
Neot book value at 31 May 2015 14 0 147 287
Buildingand  Computer
leasehold and other
ail figures In § milllons Imprevements  equipment Total
Cost
At 1 Juns 2013 186 205 39.1
Differences on exchange 02 09 11
On acquisition of IND (note 5) 06 04 1.0
Additions 44 88 13.0
Disposals (0.1) {0.5) (@ 6)
At 31 May 2014 23.7 209 536
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 June 2013 (32 (59) (8 1)
Differences on exchange {01 (0 6) 07
Dspreciation charges (note 2) {3 1) {59 (9.0)
At 31 May 2014 (6.4) (12 4) (18 B}
Net book valua _at 31 May 2014 17.3 175 348
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9, Investments

31 May 31 May
all figures in $ mihens 2015 2014
Opening halance 28 3.7
Differences on exchange - 03
Disposal - (0 5}
Reclassificatien to Trade and other receivables - {0.6)
Falr value movements (0.3) c1
Closing bzlance 2.5 28

The Group’s investmenis comprse invastments in US and European Technology Funds and markelable
secunties, which are classified as “farr value through profit or loss” Fair value gains and losses are recognised
within finance costs The investments are denaminated in US Dollar and Euro and 1s non-interest bearing

10. Deferred taxation

Goodwlll and
Other acquired
deductible Intangibles
temporary deferred tax
2l figures In § millons Losses  differences liabillty Total
At 1 June 2014 13.8 (4 6) (179 2) (170 0)
Credited (charged) ta the consolidated income
statement (note 4) 42) 29 87 374
tmpact of change in tax rates taken to the
consolidated income statement (note 4) - 02 - 02
Credit related to components of other
comprehenswe ncoms - (58} - (5 8)
Differences on exchange - 0.1) (D 5) (0 8}
At 31 May 2015 9.8 7 4) (141.0) {138.8}
Goodwill and
Other acquired
deductible intangibles
temporary deferred tax
alt figtires in § milions Losses differences llability Total
At 1 June 2013 20.0 (4.1) (224 8) (208 9)
On acquisition of IND {note 5) - - (2 8) 28)
Credred (charged) to the consolidated income (7 1) (10) 71 290
statement (note 4)
Impact of change In tax rates taken to the
consolidated iIncome statement (note 4) - (03) "3 110
Credt related to components of other
comprehensive INcome - 09 - 0g
Differences on exchangs 09 {0.1) - 08
At 31 May 2014 13 (46} (179 2) (170 0)
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Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset The following 1s an analysis of the deferred tax
balances (after offset)

31 May . 31 May
All figures in § mittions 2015 2014

Goodwill Goodwill

Other and Other and

temporary  acquired temporary  acquired
Losses differences Intangibles Total Losses differences nlangibles Total
Deferred tax assets 0.6 - - 96| 44 79 - 123
Deferred tax labilities - {7.4) 141,0) (148.4 04 {12 5) {1792} (182 3)
As shown ahbove 9.6 {7.4) 141.9) (138.8 138 (4.6) {178 2} (1700}

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it Is probable that there will he sufficient future profits In
the respective tax jurisdiction to ulilise the assets. In total, deferrad tax assets of $9 6m (2014 $12 Im) have
been recognised These include $9 6m (2014 34 4m) of tax losses and $nit (2014 $7 9m) of other temporary
differances

included within the deferred tax abilty of $148 4m (2014 $182 3m) is $141 Om (2014 $179 2m) ansing from
acquired intangibles and goodwill. This represents the net future tax labmties ansing from the underlying
goodwill and acquired intangmles Defarred tex labilities of $31 Om (2014 $36 7m) will reverse within one
yaar

Deferred tax 1s measured at the substantively enacted tax rates in force at the reporting dalefor each country
that the Group operates in  As such, the deferred tax balance 15 subject to change as global tax rules and
rates change On 8 July 2015 the UK government announced its intention to reduce the UK corporation tax
rate to 19% In 2017 and 18% In 2020, the effect of these changes will be a reduction in the deferred tax liability
of $2 2min 2017 and $0 6m in 2020, lhese adustments will go to the consolidated incomae statement

The Group has a number of tax assets that are not recognised as therr utilisation 1s not deemed to be probable
due to nsuffictent future profits expected to arise in country or because the tax losses can only be offset
against certan types of incoma or gains which are nol expected to occur The compenents of the
unrecognised assets, stated gross, are UK capiial losses of $328 7m (2014 $359 Bm), Luxembourg corporate
tax losses $357 Tm (2014 $443 7m), UK corporate tax losses and other tax deductions not recognised of
$402 8m (2014 $511 2m)} and corporate tax losses in other junsdictions of $26 1m (2014 $87 6m)

The total of these when mulliphed by the respective country tax rate gives an unrecognised deferred tax asset
of $254 7m (2014 $320 8m)

11 Derivative financial instruments

All denvative financlai instruments are measured at their fair value and are calculated by reference to the net

present value of future cash flows, based on exchange rates and interest rates quoted on international
financial markets, at tha reporling date See note 26 for additional disclosure

31 May 31 May
215 2014

all figures In $ milions Asseis Llabilities Assets Liabillies
Farward foreign currency contracts 20.8 {4.0) 36 59)
Embedded denvatives 5.9 (1.1) 13 {4.6)
267 (5.1) 49 (10 5}

Analysed as follows:
Current 185 (4.0) 35 (62}
Non-current 82 (1.9} 14 {4 3)
267 (5.1) 49 (10 5)
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Forward currency contracts used to economically hedge cash flow risks

The aggregate notional amounts of the outstanding forward foreign currency contracls at 31 May 2015 were
$353 9m (2014 $453.3m) The notional amount of outstanding contracts at 31 May 2015 compnse $152 2m
(2014 $274 4m) in Euro, $93 O0m (2014 $83 1m) in Pound Sterling, $46 1m (2014 $42 7m) in Indian Rupes,
$45 7m (2014 $39 7rn) in Philippine Peso, $16 9m (2014 $13 am) in Australian Dollar and other currencies

Selacted expected future non-US Dollar key currency cash flows of the Group are hedged with forward
currency contracts Hedge accounting s not applied as the techmical requirements of 1AS 39 ‘Financial
Insteuments’ are not met Gams and losses are recorded in the conschdated income statement within
operating expenses

Dunng the year a $37 3m gain (2014- $7 8m loss) was recognised through operating expenses n the
consaolhdatad income statement n relation to forward currency contracts

Embedded derivatives

Certain long-term software licensing contracts are priced in currencies which are not the functlonal currencies
of the entities entering into the contracts, or are not common contracting currencies in the location in which the
transaction takes place. Such contracts are considered to contain an embedded foreign currency denvativa
which must be extracted from the host contract and measured separately at each reporting date except where
the currency of the contract I1s recognised as a common means of exchange in the country concerned Gains
or losses on these derivatives are charged or credited to the consolidated income statemeant The contracts are
generally of up to 10 years’ duration and this is therefore the period over which the assets and liabilities
recogmsed In the consolidated slatement of financial positon are expected to crystallise,

During the year a $7 9m gain (2014 $4 Om loss) was recognlsed through operating expenses m the
consolidated income statement n relation to embadded denvatives

12 Trade and other receivablas

31 May 31 May
Al figures in § milons 2015 2014
Trade raceivables 2084 2432
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables {5.5) {51
Net trade receivebles 2029 2381
Research and development credits 17 28
Other taxabion and social security 36 13
Deposils 57 47
QOther receivables 87 68
Prepayments 208 262
Accrued income 82.6 859
Current trade and other recevables 3358 3758
Research and development credits 16.8 156
Deposits 1.1 13
Prepayments 11 -
Accrued Income * 128 64
Non-current trade and other receivables 31.6 233
Total trade and cther recevables 367 4 388 1

The provision for impaired trade receivables relates to receivables from cuslomers in financial difficulty,
customer accaplance issues and cancelled contracts
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The accrued income balance is stated net of a proviston of $8.3m (31 May 2014; $6 2m) for items where future
hillings have become uncertain due to specific circumstances with identified customers

As at 31 May 2015, trade recevables of $86 6m (2014, $111.9m) were past due but not impaired These relate
to a number of customers for whom there is no recent history of default and where commaercial discussions
lead managament to concludae that it remains likely that the customer will pay without concessions from the
Group

Tha ageing analysis of net trade receivables is as follows

31 May 31 May

all figures In $ millions 2015 2014
0-30 days 1008 1211
30-60 days 240 336
60-90 days 13.7 46 2
90-120 days 153 132
120-180 days a2 170
Over 180 days’ 159 70
’ 2029 2381

The maximum exposurea to credit risk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of sach class of recewvable
mentioned above

Movements in the Group's provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows

all figuras In $ millions 2015 2014
Opening balance (51) (117)
Provision for impairment of receivables (78) (4 0)
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible 30 64
Unused amounts reversed 3.8 49
Differences on exchange 06 {0.7)
At 31 May (5.5) {5 1)

13 Share capital and share premium

Alloited, fully paid Share Share
share capital capital premium
Number of Shares 3 miliions ¥ milllons]
At 1 June 2014 and 31 May 2015 20,550 - 104

The authonsed share capital at 31 May 2015 consisted of 20,550 ordinary shares with a nominal valug of $1
each (2014 20,550 ordinary shares with a nominal value of $1 each)

On 4 May 2012, a non-cash contribution of $2 Om was mada to the share premum of the Group as a resuit of
the lransfer of the Turaz investment to the Group On 30 May 2012, Misys Newco S a r | made additional cash
contribution of $6 Om towards the share premium of the Group On 28 February 2013, Misys Newco S arl
contnbuted to the share premium of the Group in the aggregata amount of $2 2m compnsed of 215,045,835
Income Participating Preferred Equity Ceriificates ('IPPECs') with nominal value of $0 01 each
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14 Other reserves

Retained Translation

all figures in $ milllons carnlngs raserve Total
At 31 May 2013 {458.8) {31.3) {490.1)
Total comprehensive expense for the yaar {232 7} (6 1) (238 8)
Actuaral gains - 02z - 02
Cther movement {0.2) - (0 2}
At 31 May 2014 (691.5) (37.4) {728.9)
Total comprehensive expense for the year {(311.2) 33 {302.9)
Actuanzl gains 06 - 06
At 31 May 2015 {1,002.1 {29.4})  (1,031.2)
15. Trade and other payables

31 May 31 May
all figures In S milflons 2015 2014
Trada payables 83 99
Other taxation and social secunty 23.5 290
Other payables 84 1.4
Accrued axpenses 142.4 173 5
Current trada and other payables 182 8 2138
Non-current accrued expenses 88 12.0
Total trade and other payables 191.4 2258
Accrued expenses comprise

31 May 31 May
Al figures In § milllons 2015 2014
Third party royalties and agency fees 17.4 123
Staff related costs (including sales commssions and bonuses) 55.5 96 1
Interast expenss 466 46 6
Rent expense 13.0 173
Other operaling costs 187 13.2
Tolal accrued expenses 1512 185 5

42




- iy

e aweba e

Misys Newco 2 S.ar.lL
Notes to the consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

16. Borrowings

Borrowings consista of two mam categones of external debt, being term Ii)ans which are governed by speciffic
agreements between the Group and a consortum of lenders as identified in the following breakdown, and
overdrafts and other short term faciliies which were not drawn down at 31 May 2015 (2014 nil)

Term loans

31 May 31 May
all figuris In $ milliona 2015 2014
Term loans 128 134
Capitalised arrangement fees {12 8) {13.4)
Borrowings — current - -
Term loans 1,857.5 1,919.3
Capitahsed arangement fees {53.8) (72.4)
Borrowings — non-current 1.803.7] 1,846 9
Total term loans 1,803.7 1,846 9
Capitalised arrangement fees reclassified to other receivables {5.3) (32)
Bank loans (Nolte 22) 1,798.4 1,843 7

At 31 May 2015 the Group had the foliowing secured term loans

First Lien credit agreament

s A $1,040 5m {2014 $1.051 2m) term loan, maturing on 12 December 2018 The term loan carries interest
at London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") + 4% (May 2014 LIBCR + 4%) Prnncipal repayments of
$2 7m are made every three months,

« A €186 3m (2014 €188 2m) term loan, maturmg on 12 December 2018 The term loan carmes interest at
LIBOR + 4,25% (May 2014 LIBOR + 425%) Principal repayments of €0 5m are made every three
months, and

* A $100m (2014 $100m) Revolving Credit Facility (*“RCF"), maturing on 12 June 2017 The credit facility
was unutilised at 31 May 2015 (May 2014 unutilised) aithough the Group drew on the facity at varlous
umes during the year Repayments of all drawn amounts are made within three months of drawdown and
are available for redrawing until matunty

Second Lien credit agreement

* A $6828m (2014 $625m) term loan maturing on 12 June 2019 The term loan was fully drawn on 31 May
2015 and 31 May 2014 and carries interest at 12 0% (May 2014. 12 0%) No principal repayments are due
during the tarm of the loan

No amendments have been made to the cradit agreements in the year ended 31 May 2015. On 16 August
2013, the tesms of the First Lien credit agreement were renegotiated There was a net increase in the pnncipal
amount of $39 1m and more favourable pricing of interest rates As a consequence $4 tm of capitatised
arrangement fees were wntten off Cn 25 November 2013, thare was a further net mcrease in the principal
amount of the First Lien credit agreement of $208 1m,the proceeds of which was used to redeem Series A
PECs

The Group 13 subjact to certain finance covenants under the credit agreements These spaciy a maxmum
ratio of net borrowings to operating profit, before depreclation, amortisation and exceptional or non-recurring
items, deducting capitahsed research and development costs. Thesae covenantis have not been breached
during the year. Substantally all of the asssts of the Group are pledged as securlty under the credit
agreements.
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No additional fees were capitallsed duning the year ended 31 May 2015. The unamortised amounts remaining
in the cansolidated statement of financial posibon at 31 May 2015 amounted to $71 9m of which $5 3m related
to the cumrent porhon which was reclassified to other racewvables as it exceeded the current portion of toans
{May 2014- $89 Om, of which $3 2Zm was reclassified) Amorbtisation expense for the year of $16 8m (2014
$18 2m of which $4 1m was accelerated due to amendments raferred to above) s included in finance costs in
the consolidated income statement

The fair values are basad on Future expected cash flows associated with borrowtngs are shown in note 26
Overdrafts and other short term factities

The Group currently has access to two short term uncommitted berrowing faciihies provided by commercial
banks The faciities have a total avadability of $48 Om and may be drawn as short-term loans or utilised as
overdraft faciities on related bank accounts At 31 May 2015 no amounts were drawn aganst the facifities
(May 2014 $nil) Borrowings under the facilities are secured by participation in the securily arrangements of
the First Lien credit agreement

17, Preferred Equity Certificates

In May 2012, the Group issued $1,257 1m as a senes of PECs, sach with a par value of $1, {o its Immediate
parent company, Misys Newco S & r| The PECs have a term of 49 years from the date of issuance (effective
datae) but may be retired earier at any time by the Group or upon liquidation of the Company. The effaclive
dale, interest raie and outstanding balances for each PEC series are as follows.

alt figures In $ milhons

PEC Effective 31 may 31 May
Serias Date Interest 2015 2014
A 4-May-12 12.80%, compounded monthiy 27.2 240
B 4-May-12 12,50%, compounded annually 290 258
o} 4-May-12 12 50%, compounded annually 156 6 1390
v 4-May-12 12 50%, compounded annually 2418 2147
£ 30-May-12 12 50%, compounded arnually 1,097 7 975 6
F 30-May-12 0.00% 50 50
G 4-May-12 0 00% 75 75
Tolal PECs 1,564.8 1,291 6

Interest of $174 4m accrued during the year (2014 $167 6m), offset against a related party receivable from
Vista Equily Pariners of $1 2m resulting in $173 2m capitalised to the PEC balance on 31 May 2015 The
Group raedeemed $198 8m of the Series A PECs in November 2013
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18. Provisions

ali fgures In § millions Property Other Tatal
At 1 June 2014 71 05 1.9
Charged / (credited) to consolidated income statement
- Additional provisions 27 - 2.7
- Release of unused amounts {02) (02) {0.4)
Accretion of discount 02 - 0.2
Utilisation of provisions {(20) 02) (22)
Differences on exchange (13) {0.1) {1.4)
At 31 May 2015 8.5 0.3 6.8
Analysis of total provislon:
Current 25 03 2.8
Non-current 40 - 4.0
65 0.3 a.8
all figures in $ millons Property Other Tatal
At 1 June 2013 M1 39 150
Charged / (credited) to cansolidated income statement
- Additional provisions 12 02 14
- Relgase of unused amounts (38) (1 (4.9)
Accretion of discount 09 - 09
Utillsation of provistons (24) (03) 27
Reclassified to Defarred income - (21) {2.1)
Differences on exchange 01 0.2 03
At 31 May 2014 71 08 79
Analysis of total provision:
Current 19 08 2.7
Noen-current 52 ~ 52
71 08 79
Property provisions

The property provisions compnse tha net present value of the estimated fulure cosis of vacant, sublet and
occupied properties of the Group after taking mto account dilapidation obligations in the lease The provision
relating to vacant and sublet properttes Is expected to be utiised on average over the next five years During
the year, the discount rate apphcabla to all new property provisions was betwsen 1 9% and 2 75% Provisions
released dunng the year relate to dilapidation provisions which are no longer required as those properties have
been surrendered.

Ofther provisions e, - e =
Other provisions relate to obligations following the acquisition of third party Software
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19. Deferred income

31 May 31 May
all igtwes In § millions 2015 2014
Currant
Mamntenance fees 2200 2338
Qther ravenue 18.1 333
238.1 2671
Non-~current
Mamntenance fees \ 33 G4
QOther revenue 123 8.2
Total deferred income 156 14 6

Deferred maintenanca fees represent amounts invoiced in advance for contracts which provide lechmcal
support and trouble-shooting assistance in addition to upgrades and enhancements to the Group's software
products and hardware mamtenance. Mamntenance fees are recognised as revenue ratably as the services are
provided over the perod of the contract

Other revenue represents amounts involced primanly in respect of ILF for software products and Professional
Services for which the revenue recognition critenia have yet to be salisfied

20 Retirement benefit obligations

Defined contributon schemas

The Group operates a number of defined contnbution pension schemes covenng the majority of s employees
The cost of these pension schemes was $15 8m (2014 $15 3m) and was charged to the consolidated income
statement as ncurred and included within employee costs. There were no outatanding or prepaid contributions
at either the beginning or the end of the financial year

Defined benefit schemes

The Group cperates vanous defined benefll schemes across the world The most significant scheme 1s 1n the

UK and the disclosures in thus note relate o that scheme In terms of the non-UK schemes, these are
summarised below

31 May 31 May

all fiquras in § millkions 2015 2014
Phiippines funded scheme
Scheme assets 4.7 48
Scheme habilities {6.2) (62)
Net hability {1.5) (14)
Unfunded schemes
United Arab Emirates (2.3) (20)
India (18| (17)
Indonesia o7 (08)
USA (0.4) (06)
Total pension habihties for non-UK schemes {8.7) (6 5)
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UK Refrement Benefifs Plan

In 2003/04 the activa membaers of the Misys UK final salary retirement benefits plan {the “Plan*) ceased 1o
accrue benefits on the baslis of their final salary during the year Thereafter the benefits of the active members
accrue on a money purchase (defined contribution) basis

The Plan 1s a funded, defined benefit, final salary pension plan The level of benefits provided depends on
membars' length of service and their salary at their date of leaving the Plan Pensions in payment recewe
different levels of increases, some fixed (at 0%, 3% and 3 5% per annum) and some recerving inflationary
increases In fine with the increase in the Ratail Pnces Index (“RPI1”) (subject to cerlain caps and floors) The
banefit payments are from trustee-administered funds The amounts of contributions to be paid are decided
jointly by the employer and the Trustees of the Plan Assets held in trust are governed by UK regulations and
practice The Plan's investment strategy Is decided by ihe Trustees, in consullation with the employer The
board of Trustees must be composed of representatives of the employer and plan partiopants in accordance
with the Plan's legal documentation,

The latest full actuanal vatuation of the Plan was carned out as at 31 May 2014, the assumptions of which
have been updatsd to 31 May 2015 by qualified independent actuaries

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financat position are determined as follows.

31 May 31 May
afl fiqures In § millions 2015 2014
Present value of funded obligations {83.8) {86 2)
Falr value of pldn assels 911 854
Surplus / (deficit) of funded plans 73 (08)
Present value of unfunded obligations - -
Total surplus / {deficit) of defined benefit pension plans 73 (0 8)
Unrecognised asset due to limit In IAS 19 ‘Employes benefits' paragraph 64 {7.3) -
Liability In consolidated statement of financial position - {0.8)
The year-end assets and liabilities in the Flan were
Of which
not quoted
on active
all fiqures In § miilions Total market Y%
investment funds 56,2 365 61.7%
Buy-in contract 33.6 336 36.9%
Cash and other 13 13 1.4%
Tolal market value of assets 9.1 714 100 0%
Actuanal value of iabiities (83.8)
» Surplus n the Pian 73
Unrecognised asset due to hmit in 1AS 19 'Employes benefits' (7 3)
paragraph 64
Net pension llabllity at 31 May 2015 -
The Flan doas not invast in the Group's own transferable financial instruments
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Of which
not quoted
on active
sl figures in § mitlions Total market %
Investment funds 538 345 62 8%
Buy-in contract 313 N3 36 7%
Cash and other 05 05 05%
Total market value of assets 854 66 3 100 0%
Actuanal value of liabilies (86 2)
Deficit in the Plan (0 8)

Unrecognised asset due to imit in IAS 19 'Employee
benglils’ paragraph 84
Net pension liakibty at 31 May 2014 {0 8)

Tha Trustee of the Plan bought a bulk annulty policy from. Legal & Generzt Assurance (Penswons
Management) Limited in respect of the Plan's pensioners and their dependants as at 14 August 2012 An

estimate of the value of the buy-in contract 1s included in the asset value

The market value of assets is cansidered to be matenally the same as the fair value

Movement in the Plan assets and obligations during the year.

Faoir value
Present value of plan
al figures 1n S milllons of obligation assets Total
At 1 June 2014 (86 2) 854 {0.8)
Interest (expense) / income {33} 33 -
(89 5) 887 (0.8}
Remeasurements
Return on plan on assets excluding amounts included in interest
Gain from change in demographlic assumptions (0 5) - (0.5)
Gan from change in financial assumptions (9.2) - {9 2)
Experience losses 14 - 1.4
(8 3) 167 84
Exchange differences 77 (8.0) {0.3)
Payments from plans:
Benefit paymenis €3 {6.3) -
At 31 May 2015 {83.8) 91.1 7.3

The actuaral gain recagmsed in the Group's other comprehensive income 18 $0 6m (2014 $0 2m) which 15
comprised of a gain from the UK scheme of $0 8m offset by an actual 10ss in the non-UK schemes of $0 2m

Penslon costs of $16 7m (2014 $16 7m) were recognised In the Group’s consohdated income statement in

cperating expenses for both defined contribution and defined berefit plans
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Movemaent in the Plan assetis and obligations dunng the prior year )

Present Fair value
valus of of plan
afl figutes In § mitllons obhgation assets Tofal
At 1 June 2013 {74 5) 748 03
Admimstration costs (03) - (0.3}
Interest {axpenss} / incoma (3.6)° 26 -
{78 4) 78.4 -
Remeasurements.
Rsturn on plan on assets excluding amounts included in interest
expense - 24 24
Gain from changa in financial assumptions {34) - 34)
Experience losses 02 - 02
{32) 24 08}
Exchange differences (78) 78 -
Paymentsg from plans’
Benefit payments 29 29) -
Administration costs 03 (0.3} -
At 31 May 2014 (86 2) 854 (0 8)
The principal assumptions used in the valuations of the Plan are
2015 2014
% %
Inflation (RPI} 34 36
Inflation {CPI} 24 26
Rate of increase in pensions In payment’
Fixed 3% 30 30 B
Fixed 3 5% 335 35
RP1 max 5% min 3% 37 38
RPImax 5% min 3 5% 39 40
Post 1988 Guaranteed mimimum pension 21 22
Discount rata for plan liabilities 34 42

Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on actuanal advice in accordance with published
statisics and expenence. These assumptions translale Intc an average Wfe expectancy in years for a

pensionar retiring at age 60.

2015 2014

Yoars Years

Life expactancy for male currently aged 60 29,2 288

Life expectancy for a famale currently aged 60 303 2949

Life expectancy for male currently aged 40 308 08

Life expactancy for a female currently aged 40 2.7 319
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The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation o changes in the principal assumplions is.

Change in assumption Impact on defined
benefit obligation

. {Emiltions)
Discount rate -01% {0 8)
RPlinflation +0 1% 0.2)
Demographic changs 1 year increase n life expectancy {1.8)

The above sensitivily analysis on the discount rate 1s based on a change in an assumption while holding all
other assumptions constant The change m RPI inflation assumplion impacts on the Consumer Pnces Index
(“CPI") assumption, revaluation in deferment and pension increase assumptions When calcuating sensitivity
of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuanal assumptions the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calcuiated with the projected unit credit mathod at the end of the reporting period)
has been apphed as when calculating the pension llability recognised within the statement of financia! position
This Is consistent with sensitivities calculated in previous periods

The Plan s exposed {o a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailad below

Assel volatiiity

The liabihties are calculated using a discourit rate set with reference to corporate bond yields If assels
underperform this yield, this will create a deficit The Plan holds a significant proportion of growth assels (e g
equitles, property, absolute return fund) which are expected to outperfosn corporate bonds in the long-term
while providing volatility and risk in the short-term The allocation to growth assets is monitored such that it is
suitable with the Plan’s long term objectives

Changes in bond ywelds
A decrease in tha corporate bond yields will increase the Plan's habilies, although this will be partially offset
by an increase in the value of the Plan's bond holdings

Inflation rlsk

The majority of the Plan's benefit obhigations are linked to Inflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher
liabilities (although, in most cases, caps on the level of Inflationary increases are in place to protect against
extreme inflaten} The majonty of the assets are either unaffecied by or loosely comelated with inflation,
meaning that an increase i inflation wil also increase the deficit

Life expscilancy

The majonty of the Plan’s obligations ars to provide benefits for the tfe of the members, so increases in life
expectancy will rasult in an increase in the liabilities

The Plan uses the buy-n contract and liability matching assets (which includes swaps and cash funds) as

maiching assets The remalinder of the assets 1s used as growth assets, Funding levels are monitored on a
quartetly basis and the next tnenrial valuation 1s due o be completed as at 31 May 2017

There are no employer contributlons expacted 1o be pald to the Plan for the year ending 31 May 2016 The
weighted average durahon of the defined benefit obligation is approximately 16 years
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21 Net cash flow generated from operations

Year Year
ended ended
31 May a1 May
all figurses in $ milllons Note 2015 2014
Operating profit 563 1252
Amortisation of other inlangtble assets 7 2102 2009
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment g a8 9.6
Capntalised developed software writlen off 7 33 -
Gooedwill mpairment . 6 600 -
Differences between pension charge and cash contributions D5 (0 3)
{Gain)/less on embedded derivatives 11 {7 9} 42
Unreahsed foraign exchange gains (22 3) (99}
Mavements in working capitat
(Increase) / decrease in trade and other receivables 104 (57 9}
Decraase in payables and provisions {22 0) (257}
Increase / (decrease) In deferred Income {6 6) 639
Nat cash flow generated from operations . 291.7 3100

22 Reconciliation of movements in net debt

The Group defines net debt as borrowings excluding PECs, less cash and cash equivalents and restnicled

cash

Cash and

cash Restricted Bank

alt igures In § millions aquivalents cash overdrafts Bank loans Net debt
At 31 May 2013 263 24 (5 3) (1,605 9) (1.582 6)
Acquisitions - IND (41 5) - o (2.8) (44 3}
Cash flow 6556 {10) 53 {209 6) (139.8)
Non-cash movements - - - (18 3) (18 3)
Differences on exchange 05 - - {7.1) {6 6)
At 31 May 2014 508 14 - {1,843 7) (1,791.5)
Acquisitions - CCS (24 9) - - - {24 9)
Cash flow 16.4 (05) - 131 200
Non-cash movemsnts - - - {16 8) {16.8)
Differences on exchange (2.0) - - 490 47.0
At 31 May 2015 40.3 09 - {1,798.4) (1,757.2

Resincted cash of $0 9m (2014 $1 4m) is not available for the general use of the Group

Bank loans are inclusiva of capltalised loan arrangement fees of $5 3m {2014; $3 2m) which have heen

reclassified to other receivables as descnbed in note 16
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23 Contingent liabilities

Contingent habilittes that are quantfiable arise from guaraniees, letters of credit and bonds that have been
1ssued In support of tenders submitted to prospective customers Thase amount to $1 1m (2014 $0 7m)

A contingent liability exists (n relation to the Group's defined benefit scheme (note 20) as a result of the
proposed equalisation of Guaranteed Minmum Pension ("GMP") The UK Government intands to implement
legislation which could result in an increase In the value of GMP for males. This would increase the defined
benefit obligation of the Plan At this stage # is not possible to quantify the Impact of this change

The Company and its subsidiaries may be parties to legal achiens and clasms arising in the ordinary course of

business Whilst the outcome of current outstanding actions and claims remains uncertain, it 1s expected that
they will be resolved without a material impact to the Group's financial posibon

24 Commitments

Commitments of the Group under non-cancellable operating leases at 31 May 2015

2015 2014
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
all figures in § milfons buildings equipment buildings equipment
Rental payments due within ona year 26.6 0.3 308 02
Renta! payments due between one and five years 71.0 0.2 889 0.2
Rental paymenls due after five yaars. 43.1 - 497 -
Total 146.7 0.5 169 4 04

Total future sublease ingcome under non-cancellabla subleases 1s $4 2m due within one year (2014 $4 6m),
$10 5m due between one and five years (2014 $14 Om) and $4 Sm due after 5 years (2014 $7 3m).

25, Related party transactions

Parent and subsidiaries -
Transactions between the Company and ils subsidiaries, which are related partles, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed n this note

Remuneration of key management personne!
The key management personnel of the Group compnse the Managers and certain other senior management
Thetr remuneration 1s set out below n aggregate

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

all igures in § milions 2015 2014
Short-term employment benefits 81 57
Post-smployment benefits 0.1 02
Termination benefits - 15
8.2 74

The $1.564 8m (2014, $1,391 6m) PECs balance and associated accrued mterest is owed to Misys Newco
S.artl,the immediate parent entity of tha Group

52




Misys Newco 2 S.Ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

Other related parties
During the year, the Group acquired third party software from SumTotal Systems UK Limited, a company
previously owned, dunng the year, by Vista Equity Partners for a consideration of $0 2m (2014 30 4m)

The Group acquired services from Tibco Software Inc, a company owned by Vista Equity Pertners, for a
consideration of $0 3m (2014 $nil)

As at 31 May 2015, there were no outstanding balances dus to SumTotal Systems UK Limited or Tibco
Software Inc

The Group utilised management consulting services from Vista Consulting Group LLC of $1 4m (2014 52 4m)

The Group paid 50 6m of expenses on behalf of Vista Equity Partners (2014 $0 8m) Cumulative debt of
$1 2m was settled via a repayment of accrued interast on Senes E PECs as 1s prescnbed under the PEC
agreement There Is a remalning receivable balance of $0 2m (2014 $0 8m) from Vista Equity Partners at 31
May 2015 which was not settled

Dunng the year, $0 2m was charged to Aptean Corporation, a company owned by Vista Equity Partners, in
respect of payroll recharges As at 31 May 2015, $0 1m was outstanding from Aptean Corporation

26 Financlal instruments: risk management

The Group operaies a centrahsed treasury function which 1s responsible for managing the hquidity, interest
rate and foreign exchange nsks associated with the Group's activities under policies approved by the Board
As part of its strategy for the management of these nsks, the Group usas dervative financial instruments In
accordance with the Group's treasury policy, derivative instruments are not entered into for speculative
purposes Treasury policy 15 reviewed and approved by the Board and specifies tha parameters within which
treasury operations must be conducted, including authorised counterparties, nstrument types, transacton
limits and principles governing tha management of quidity, interest rate and foreign exchange risks

The Group's pnncipal financial instruments, other than denvatives, are cash, shori term deposits, bank loans,
PECs, trade and other receivables and frade and other payables The main purpose of these financial
Instruments 13 to raise finance for the Group's operations

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and 15 exposed to forelgn exchange risk ansing from vanous currency
exposuras Forewgn exchange nsk anses from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations The Group reviews the non-US Dollar nat cash flow exposure of the
Group and hedges forecast exposures which exceed the mit specified by management using external forward
contracls

The Group's net exposure to foreign currency nsk is iltustrated by the sensitivity analysis 1n note 29

Intorest ralte nsk

The Group is exposed to cash flow Interest rate nsk on floating rate loans, overdrafts and cash held on
deposit The Group's berrowings are a mix of fioating and fixed rates with variable interest rates set for periods
of three months or less The Group's vanable rate term loan debt references LIBOR, with a speaified floor of
1% Based on various scenanos, the Group manages its cash filow interast rale nsk using interest rate hedging
instruments such as caps or swaps As at 31 May 2015 the Group held no interest rate hedging instruments
{2014 none)

The Group's net exposure to interest rate risk 1s lustrated by the sensitvity analysls in note 29
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Credit rnisk

Credit nsk anses from cash and cash equivalents, derlvative financial instruments and deposits with banks and
financial institutions but pnmarily from outstanding trade recevables and commilted fransactions The Group
has policies in place to ensure thal sales are made to customers with an appropnate credit history

Denvative and cash transactions are imited to high-qualty financial insttutions The Group has policies that
kit the amount of cradit exposure to any financial mstitution. For customer contracts, the Group and each
reporiing subsidiary have specified nsk control and authonsation procedures in place to assess the credit
quality of a customer Where there is no independent nisk rating for a customer, such an assessment takes into
account financral position, past expenence and other factors

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit nisk, with exposures spread over a large number of
customers and counterparties

Liqurdrty nsk

The Group manages its cash and borrowing requirements centrally to mimimise net interest expense withun nsk
parameters set by the Board, whilst ensuring that the Group has sufficlent iquid resources to meet the
operating needs of the business The long tarm forecast cash and borrowings profile of the Group 1s montored
to ensure that adequate headroom remarns under current and projected borrowsng facilities

The table below shows the matunty analysis of the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flows of the
Group's non-denvative financial liabibties

Less than 1to 2 2to 5 Over§ 2015
all figures In S millions 1 year yaars years years Total
Borrowings 150 8 1502 205248 - 23536
Trade and other payablas 155 9 - - - 1559
Total cash flows - 2015 306.7 150 2 2,052.6 ~  2,609.5

t.oss than 1t02 205 Overd 2014
all figuras in § milions 1 year years years years Total
Borrowmngs 157 9 1820 22732 -~ 26131
Trade and other payahles 1866 22 62 14 195 4
Other llabiiites 106 - 02 02 11.0
Total cash flows - 2014 354.1 184 2 2,278.6 16 2.818.5

The Group has also 1ssued PECs with a matunty of 49 years as outhned in Note 17 At the reporting date, the
PECs have 46 years outstanding to maturty The PECs have not been taken into account in the above
matunly analysis of undiscounted confractual cash flows The total impact for the PECs in 46 years on an
undiscounted contractual cash flow basls 18 $377,251 9m following the $1 2m repayment of PEC interest
during the year (2014 $377.663.1m)

The table below analyses the Group's oulllow and inflow from derivative financial instruments mnto relevant

maturity groupings based on the remaning contractual maturily penod at the reporting date The amounts
disclosed in the table are tha contractual undiscounted gross cash flows
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Less than 1to 2 2to5 Over5 2015
li figures in § mifions 1 year years years years Total
Denvative financial mstruments {gross settled)
- Inflows 267 4 105 4 19 22 376.9
- outflows _ {2530} {101.6) {0.5) (0.2} (355.3}
Net cash flows - 2015 144 k1] 1.4 2.0 21.6
Less than 102 205 Over5 2014
all figuras In 3 rilllons 1 year vears years Years Total
Dernwvative financial instruments (gross
settied)
- inflows 370 1 816 o7 - 452 4
- outflows {3727) (82.6) £{27) - {458 0)
Net cash flows - 2014 {2 6) (1.0} {20) - (5 6}

Netting arrangements of denvative financial insiruments

The gross falr value of derivative financial instruments as presented in the Group consolidated statement of
financial position, together with the Group's rights to offset associaled with recognised financial assels and
recognised financial habilities subject lo enforceable master nething arrangements and similar agreements 1s
summatised as follows

May May
2015 2014
Consolidated statement of financial Consolidated statement of financial
position posiian
Gross Amount Net Gross Amount Net
gll Fgures in § milltons ammount  presented amount amount presented amount
Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments 208 208 169 36 386 17
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments {4.0) (40} (0.1} {59} 5 8} {40}
168 16.8 16 8 {23) 2.3) (23

Net amounts show the effect If all amounts wera netted off for each individual counter paty

Capital nsk

The capial structure of the Group consists of nel debt, PECs (note 17) and equity aitnbutable to equity holders
of the Company, comprising 1ssued capital, reserves and retained eamings as shown in the consolidated
statement of changes In aguity and note 14. The Group manages its capital with the objective that all entities
within the Group continue as a going concern while maintaining an efficient structure to mimmise the cost of
capial

In order to mamntain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, Issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

The Group 18 subject to certain financial covenants under iis loan faciities These specify a maximum ratio of
net debt to operating profit, before depreciabion, amortisation and exceptiona! items, deducting capitalised
research and development costs This covenant has not been breached during the year

27 Financial instruments: categories

Fair value measurement hierarchy

Fair value measuremants of financial instruments (where relevant) are classified using the following fair value
hierarchy which reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements
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» Quoted pnces (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or lfabilites {Level 1),
= Input other than quoted pricas included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (1 e as prices) or indiractly (1 & denved from prices) (Level 2), and

» [nputs for the asset or iabtlity that are not based en observable market data (Uunobservable inputs) (Level
3).

Fair value Non-

Farr value through Loans & Amortised financial Non-
al) fiquras in § milbons hierarchy' P&L receivables cost_instrument® Current current
At 31 May 2015
Financial assets
Investments Level 2 25 - - - - 2.5
Denvative financial
mstruments Level 2 26.7 - " - 185 82
Trade and other receivables - 3458 - 217 33413 33.2
Restncted cash - 09 - . - 089 -
Cash and cash equivalents - 403 - - 403 -

292 387.0 - 217 394.0 43.9
Financial habilitles
Denvative financial
nstruments Lavel 2 (61} - - - (4.0) (1.1)
Borrowings and PECs - - (3,3685) - - (3,368.5)
Trade and other payahles - ~ {167.9) {23 5) {182.6) (8.8
{51} - {3,536.4} (23 6) {186.8) (3,3784
Fair value Non-

Farr value through Loans & Amortised financral Non-
all figures in § millions higrarchy* P&L receivables cost instrument® Current  current
At 31 May 2014
Financial assets
Investments Level 2 28 - - - - 28
Denvative financial
instruments Level 2 4.9 - - - a5 14
Trade and other recesvables - 3729 - 262 3758 233
Restricted cash - 14 - - 14 -
Cash and cash equivalenis - 508 - - 508 -

77 4251 - 262 4315 27 5
Financial labilities
Denvative financial
instruments Level 2 (10 5) - - - (62) (4 3)
Borrowings - - {3,2385) - - (3,238 8}
Trade and other payables - - (206.3) {195) (2138) (12.0)
{10 5) - (3,444.8) (195) (2200) {32548

Falr valuo hiararchy shows tho fair value measurement categories as desctibod bolow.

*Assels that do not quallly as a financlal Instrument include prepayments of $21 7m (2014 $262m) Liablities that do not qualify a3
finangal instruments are tax and other soclal securlty paymants of $23.5m (2014 $19 5m)

a) Financial instruments in fevel 1

The fair value of financial mstruments traded In active markets 1s based on quoted market prices at ths closa of
business on the reporting date A market Is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
avallable from an exchange, deater, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency and those
prices represent actual and regulary occurnng market transactions on an arm's length basis The quoted
market pnce used for financial assets held by the Group i1s the current bid prnce These mstruments are
included in leve! 1 and compnse investmants in quoted marketable securities
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b} Financial instruments in level 2

The farr value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
denvatives) 13 determined by using valuation techniques The valuatton techmiques maximise the use of
observable market data where it is avallable and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates If all
significant inputs required to falr value an Instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2

Forward exchangs rates valuation techmique was used to value financial instruments

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents primarily compnse cash deposits and investments Cash which bears interest at
nominal rates comprises $16,1m (2014 $26 3m) in US Dellar, $3.0m (2014 $1 6m) denominated in Pound
Stering, $30m (2014 $8 2m) in Euro and $182m (2014 $14.7m) n other currencies Restricted cash
comprises $0 9m (2014 %0 8m) denominated n US Dollar and $nil (2014 $0 6m) in other currencies

Forward foreign exchange confracts
The fairr value of foreign exchange derivatives was a net asset of $16 8m (2014 liability of $2 3m)

28. Financlal Instruments: falr values

The fair values of each category of the Group's financial instruments are approximate to their carrying values .
in the Group's statement of financial position as the impact of discounting ts not significant

29. Financial instruments: sensitivity analysls

Foreign currency sensifivity analysis

The Group's pringipal foreign currency exposures are to Pound Sterling, the Euro and Indian Rupee The table
belaw illustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group’s reported profit and equity for every 10% wncrease
and decrease, in relation to the US Dollar, i the Euro, Pound Sterling and Indian Rupee exchange rates at the
reporting date, assuming all other varnables remain unchanged. The sensitivity rate of 10% represents the
Managers’ assessment of a reasonably possible change for the foreseeable fulure.

Cutstanding forward contracts used {o hedge the non-US Dollar net cash flow exposure of the Group as
described in nole 28 are included sn this analysis It 1s anbcipated that on matunty of ihe hedges an underiying
future anticipated cash flow exposure will crystallise and offset any gain or loss

Posttive figures represent an increase in operating profit

Consohdated income statement

all figures n $ milllons 2015 2014
US Doilar strengthens by 10%

Euro {13.9) (12 6)
Pound Sterling (20} (5 3)
Indian Rupee 48 41

US Doflar weakens by 10%

Euro 130 153
Pound Sterling 2.0 60
Indian Rupesa (4.8) (5.0)

Year average exchange rates applied in the above analysis are Euro 1 22, Pound Sterling 1 59 and Indian
Rupee 0 02 (2014 Euro 1 37, Pound Sterling 1.67 and Indian Rupea 0 02)
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The Group's variable rate debt references LIBOR with a floor of 1% The Group 1s exposed 1o increases in
mterest rates beyond this floor, The table below llustrates the hypothetical sensitvity of the Group's reporled
profit to a 0 5% increase in interest rates beyond the 1%, assuming all other vanables remain unchanged The
sensitivity of 0 5% represents the Managers' assessment of a reasonably possible change for the foreseeable
future

Consolidated income statement
all igures In § milliona 2015 2014
Interest rate increase of 0 5% {6.7) {9 6}
Interest rate decrease of 0 5% 67 96

30. Principal subsidiary undertakings

The Company is the beneficial owner and has 100% of the nominal value and voling rights over all the equity
share capital, through subsidiary undertakings, of the following principal cperating subsidiary underiakings

These develop and license application software producls to customers n well-deflned vertical markets
together with undertaking transaction processing, professional services and e-commerce activities

Company name Country of Incasporation  Markets served
and operation
Misys International Banking Sysiems GmbH  Germany All of these subsidiaries offer Glabal producls
Misys International Banking Systems Inc USA and services in the following areas
- Relail and international branch banking
Misys intemational Banking Systems Limited England and Wales
. Transaction barking
Misys Internatronal Banking Systems Pty Australia
Limied
. Treasury and capital markeis
Misys International Banking Systems Limited Hong Kong
. Enterpnse-wide market and credit nsk
Misys International Financial Systems Pte Singapare management
Umited
. Software Integrahon technology
Misys France SAS France
Misys Europe SA Luxembourg
Misys [nternatonal Financial Systems China
Technology (Beljing) Limited Portfolic and risk management services in
the following areas
Misys Irefand Limited Republic of freland . Investment banks
. Treasury and capital markets
Misys ltaly S ri Italy . Fund management
. Penslon funds
Misys Global Limited England and Walas

31 Ultimatae parent undertaking and controlling party

The immediate parent undertaking 15 Misys Newce Sa rt This company files consolidated financial
statements in Luxembourg

The party which controis the Company is Visla Equity Partners based in USA,
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32. Parent undertaking guaranteo

Certain UK and German subsidiaries in the Group have elected to make use of the audit exernption, for non-
dormant subsidianes, under sechon 479A of the UK Companles Act and by virtue of section 264(3) HGB of the
German Commercial Code as relevant. The German subsidiary listed below has also elected to make use of
the exemption to publish its financial statements in the electronic federal gazette In order to {uifi the
conditions set out in the regulations, the Company has given a statutory guarantee of all outstanding liabilities
to which the subsldiaries are subject at the end of the financial year to 31 May 2015 The companies which
hava made use of the audit exemption as follows

Company name Company Number Registered coffica

Kapits Limited 1841697 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
MIBS Holdings Limited 874912 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
Misys Africa Limited 3079792 One Kingdom Strest, London, W2 6BL, UK
Misys Global Lirited 7830882 One Kingdom Sireet, London, W2 681, UK

Misys Group Holdings Limited 3378662 One Kingdom Strest, Londan, W2 8BL, UK

Misys internationai Banking

Systems (CIS) Limited 3259295 Ona Kingdom Sireet, Landon, W2 6BL, UK
Misys Holdings Limited 1752099 One Kingdom Streel, London, W2 6BL, UK
Misys Services Limited 1941076 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
Summit Agla Limited 2698761 Cne Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
MIBS Germany GmbH HRB36797 3 Hedderichstrasse 36, 60584 Frankfurt, Germany

33. Events after the reporting date

As at the date of approval of the consolidated financial statements no significant or material events affecting
the Group have been identified
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